          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON TECHNOLOGY In

          8  GOVERNMENT

          9  -------------------------------x

         10

                            June 12, 2006

         11                 Start:  10:00 a.m.

                            Recess: 12:15 p.m.

         12

                            City Hall

         13                 250 Broadway, 14th Floor

                            New York, New York

         14

         15       B E F O R E:

         16              GALE BREWER

                                           Chairperson,

         17

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Oliver Koppell

                                            Letitia James

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Ronald R. Bergmann

          4  Acting Commissioner

             NYC Department of Information Technology

          5  And Telecommunications

          6  Lawrence Knafo

             Advisor

          7  Cisco Systems

          8  Yorke E. Rhodes, III

             IBM

          9

             Sean Morgan

         10  Regional Account Manager

             Accela, Inc.

         11

             Angela Smith

         12  Deputy Director

             Department of Permits and Inspections

         13  Washington Maryland

         14  Kaisa Kleinman

             Director

         15  Jewish Community Council of Coney Island

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Good Morning.  I

          3  am Gale Brewer and I am the Chair of the Committee

          4  on Technology in Government. I am delighted to be

          5  here today with Jeff Baker, who is the Counsel to

          6  the Committee on Technology and Government, and

          7  Colleen Pagter, who is the Policy Analyst, and they

          8  have done a wonderful briefing.

          9                 I am going to just start by doing a

         10  little bit in terms of a power point, just to talk

         11  about moving toward a mobile workforce, which is

         12  what this hearing is about today.  I think that the

         13  reason we are bringing it up is because in the many

         14  hearings that we have on different agencies, in

         15  terms of oversight, the issue of what is the access

         16  for so many City workers, in terms of technology.

         17  And then in addition, of course, the private sector

         18  has some of the same concerns.  So, obviously,

         19  broadband in New York is something that has become

         20  un- wired.  I think people are very confused about

         21  some of these terms, unless you are totally

         22  involved, like many of the people in the audience

         23  here today.  But because of the advancement of

         24  broadband technology, workers have been able to move

         25  outside of an office and into a virtual office, by
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          2  working at home, the field, or a coffee shop, which

          3  is why I think we have been pushing some of the un-

          4  wiring, or wireless parks.  I think it is obvious

          5  that mobile technology, there are several benefits,

          6  the delivery of real time information, which is

          7  becoming easier due to faster connections, enhanced

          8  service, obviously faster deployment, and an

          9  increase in productivity. There are barriers, to

         10  expand in the mobile workforce, the cost of buying

         11  and maintaining new technology, the cost of support.

         12                 I think that becomes most clear in

         13  some of the schools that we are working on, the

         14  whole issue of maintenance is an endless one.

         15  Privacy concerns and security concerns, both are

         16  very real.

         17                 There are several studies of the

         18  mobile work force. Twenty percent of agencies with

         19  mobile workers said that their workers spend one to

         20  five hours weekly driving between the field and the

         21  office, that is probably less true in the public

         22  sector, but certainly true in the private.  The

         23  global mobile workforce will grow.  I thought this

         24  was most interesting, by more than 20 percent in the

         25  next two years, making more than 850 million workers
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          2  mobile by 2009.  It seems to be that up until now,

          3  there was a great deal of discussion about this, the

          4  fact that it was not as fast a connection, and often

          5  heavier equipment or becoming lighter and faster and

          6  I think that number is real for that, because of

          7  that fact.

          8                 Obviously one of the more important

          9  factors for extending the mobile workforce is

         10  productivity and efficiency, and that is something

         11  that is ongoing.  The top rated concerns of mobile

         12  data is maintaining security, that is a huge issue,

         13  capital expenditures and technical support, as I

         14  indicated earlier.

         15                 In New York City and around the

         16  country, there is a lot of focus on how we can

         17  become mobile within our own workforce. Of course,

         18  many folks in government are often in the field,

         19  that is where our most important workers, on line

         20  workers, are.  And I hope this hearing will focus on

         21  some of them.

         22                 In Washington County, Maryland, was

         23  launched a new wireless inspection and permitting

         24  system in 2004 for their inspectors, giving them

         25  Panasonic Toughbooks.

                                                            6

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 In Cleveland Ohio, City inspectors

          3  where laptops were given so that they could have a

          4  wi- fi hot zone located throughout the City.  That

          5  of course, we all will be a little New York City

          6  centric, and say some of these places are the same

          7  size as 79th Street, between Amsterdam and Columbus.

          8    But that is another story.

          9                 The Coroner's office in Kane County,

         10  Illinois created an Office Automation System, which

         11  provides staff with Tablets that can upload notes

         12  directly on to the County database through a

         13  wireless network.  I know that we have similar

         14  Tablets through the Cultures and The New York City

         15  Department of Education.

         16                 Washington D.C. has installed a

         17  wireless public safety voice and data communications

         18  program, in order to provide better collaboration

         19  for first responders.

         20                 New York City has done a lot, much

         21  thanks to DoITT, but the NYPD began issuing

         22  handhelds to their traffic enforcement agents in

         23  2003, since the death, in January, of Nixzmary

         24  Brown.  We have had several hearings on this.  The

         25  Administration for Children's Services has provided
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          2  all caseworkers who are in the field with cell

          3  phones, and is now testing laptops and computers.

          4  The Department of Buildings has implemented the

          5  PIPES system, known non acronym Plumbing Inspection

          6  Portable Entry System in February '04.  I know it

          7  has been upgraded since and it gives plumbing

          8  inspectors hand held devices.

          9                 The Department of Health, which

         10  oversees restaurants, has given handhelds also to

         11  their restaurant inspectors, an incredibly important

         12  inspection for our City, with so many restaurants.

         13                 And there are many questions to all

         14  of this which we hope to address today.  What are

         15  the expected costs and benefits in expanding the

         16  City's mobile workforce?  The wonderful efforts of

         17  DoITT to promote mobile workforce solutions to City

         18  agencies, and their efforts to build, maintain most

         19  importantly, the security of the infrastructure.

         20  And I would just add, the other issue is how to

         21  coordinate collaboration between the different

         22  agencies that are often inspecting the same building

         23  or for different aspects of whatever violation

         24  exists or could exist.

         25                 So, without further ado, I want to
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          2  thank the staff and call the first witness, who is

          3  Ron Bergmann, who is the Acting Commissioner of the

          4  Department of Information Technology and

          5  Telecommunications.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 Thank you, Colleen.

          8                 Good morning.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Good

         10  morning.  Good morning, Chairperson Brewer, members

         11  of the City Council Committee on Technology in

         12  Government.  My name is Ron Bergmann and I am the

         13  Acting Commissioner of the Department of Information

         14  Technology and Telecommunications, or DoITT.

         15                 As you know, DoITT works with City

         16  agencies to align, leverage and optimize the use of

         17  technology to meet agency and City- wide business

         18  needs.  DoITT operates the 311 Citizen Service

         19  Center, NYC.gov, and NYC TV, and regulates the

         20  City's telecommunications franchises and public pay

         21  telephones.  In addition, DoITT manages the City's

         22  800 Mhz radio network, which supports 7200 users in

         23  30 agencies.

         24                 Now more than ever, the New York City

         25  workforce is mobile, enhancing its ability to work
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          2  at any time from anywhere, is an important goal of

          3  the Bloomberg Administration.  This focus has driven

          4  DoITT's efforts, both City- wide and with individual

          5  City agencies.  We have made progress toward this

          6  goal by providing the infrastructure, support

          7  services and procurement vehicles that enable

          8  agencies to power their mobile field personnel.

          9                 First, I would like to speak about

         10  the City's infrastructure and the ways in which we

         11  have, and will continue to connect and meet the

         12  needs of our mobile workforce.

         13                 As you know, New York City no longer

         14  operates on a nine to five basis, but 24 x 7 in

         15  office and field locations throughout the five

         16  boroughs.  It is therefore necessary for DoITT to

         17  support agency business operations around the clock.

         18    A prime example of this has been the growth in the

         19  use of hand held devices by City workers.

         20                 Currently, DoITT supports thousands

         21  of Blackberry users across sixty agencies.  DoITT

         22  has also centralized email services to City

         23  agencies, migrating over 20,000 email users from 37

         24  agencies, into a consolidated environment.

         25  Providing centralized email, coupled with a hardened
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          2  and secure City- wide solution for remote access,

          3  allows users from dozens of agencies to retrieve

          4  their email and applications from their home

          5  computer or from any PC with an internet connection.

          6                 There are also twenty agencies for

          7  which DoITT provides extensive site to site Virtual

          8  Private Network or VPN connections, linking remote

          9  sites through CityNet.  These often leverage low

         10  cost access methods, such as DSL and cable modems to

         11  save the cost of dedicated T1 leased line

         12  connections for community- based sites with small

         13  numbers of users.  The Parks Department is in the

         14  process of rolling out 90 of these VPN connections

         15  at their recreation centers and field offices

         16  throughout the City.

         17                 DoItt is also coordinating

         18  initiatives to enhance the way municipal field

         19  workers obtain real time access to agency systems

         20  and the way first responders communicate at the

         21  scene of an incident.  Last month, the Mayor

         22  announced a pilot program with two vendors to test

         23  wireless technologies for the creation of a high

         24  speed wireless data network for emergency responders

         25  and field personnel.

                                                            11

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 This City- Wide Mobile Wireless

          3  Network will enable Police and Fire Department

          4  personnel to quickly access and download information

          5  including City maps, building plans and various law

          6  enforcement data bases from police and fire

          7  vehicles, as well as EMS apparatus.

          8                 In addition, other City agencies will

          9  be able to leverage the network to support safety

         10  inspections and other activities in the field.

         11  After the pilot phase, the vendor that best

         12  demonstrates its ability to meet the City's

         13  requirements, may then be selected to build out a

         14  network across the five boroughs.

         15                 I would next like to discuss some of

         16  the City's many mobile initiatives focusing on a

         17  sampling of agencies that have enforcement,

         18  inspectional and health and human services

         19  applications.

         20                 As you know, the Police Department is

         21  currently deploying hand held devices for use by

         22  traffic enforcement agents. To date, more than 1500

         23  devices for issuing parking tickets, have been

         24  deployed.  The use of these handhelds has

         25  significantly decreased the number of disputed
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          2  tickets and hearings, since the printed tickets are

          3  more accurate and legible, than hand written

          4  summonses.  At hearings, data from the ticket is

          5  electronically transmitted to the Administrative Law

          6  Judge with an image of the summons available on the

          7  Judge's computer screen.  Full deployment will be

          8  completed shortly, with the addition of the Midtown

          9  Manhattan Command.  To date, over eight million

         10  summonses have been issued using these devices.

         11                 Another initiative being piloted by

         12  NYPD, is the roll out of hand held devices for use

         13  by field personnel.  The Police Department is

         14  testing about 150 semi and fully- ruggedized devices

         15  outfitted so that police officers may check on

         16  outstanding warrants and license plate information,

         17  as well as view photos of individuals with active

         18  warrants.  Both the software and hardware components

         19  of this pilot will be evaluated and modified as

         20  necessary, based on the experience in the fields.

         21                 The Department of Sanitation is

         22  currently rolling out devices for enforcement

         23  officers to issue Environmental Control Board

         24  adjudicated summonses.  The handhelds will

         25  streamline the ability of Sanitation enforcement
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          2  staff to issue summonses and access information on

          3  previous infractions.  A pilot was launched in mid

          4  May with expansion within the borough of Manhattan,

          5  expected in the beginning of Fiscal 2007.  City-

          6  wide roll out of 260 hand held devices is planned to

          7  begin later this year.

          8                 The Department of Buildings as you

          9  noted, has revolutionized the way in which it

         10  schedules, routes and conducts and records the

         11  results of plumbing inspections, through the use of

         12  its PIPES system, an internet application used by

         13  plumbing inspectors and support staff.  PIPES

         14  facilitates structured and standardized inspections,

         15  by using hand held computers and printers in the

         16  field.  At the end of each day, the results from all

         17  inspections are uploaded into the Building's

         18  information system and made accessible to the

         19  public, via NYC.gov.

         20                 Since implementing PIPES in 2004,

         21  there has been an increase in the accuracy,

         22  transparency and efficiency of DOB plumbing

         23  inspections.  Planning is underway to phase in the

         24  PIPES concept to other inspections conducted by the

         25  agency.
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          2                 The Department of City- wide

          3  Administrative Services, or DCAS, employs a number

          4  of handheld initiatives that enable its field

          5  inspection staff to perform their duties more

          6  efficiently. DCAS' Vehicle and Quality Assurance

          7  Inspection Applications were developed to enhance

          8  the collection and distribution of data from

          9  inspections, performed at various field locations

         10  throughout the City.  Approximately 20 vehicle fleet

         11  and fuel inspectors use mobile computers with

         12  wireless connections.  Data that was previously

         13  collected manually, is now input directly into the

         14  mobile computers that each inspector carries in the

         15  field. Additionally, the data collected is now

         16  imported directly from the mobile computers into the

         17  central data base, eliminating paperwork and

         18  duplicate data entry.  Building on the success of

         19  these initiatives, DCAS recently expanded its

         20  handheld inspection and data collection project to

         21  incorporate City- wide food inspections.

         22                 Earlier this year, we assisted the

         23  Administration for Children's Services in meeting

         24  the mobile telecommunications needs of its field

         25  personnel by purchasing 2000 cell phones for use by
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          2  its Division of Child Protection.  Now every ACS

          3  member who works with the child in the field, has a

          4  City issued wireless device to better perform his or

          5  her duties.  For example, interpretation services

          6  are now available via telephone, for use in any

          7  investigation.  Child Protective workers can use

          8  their cell phones which have speaker phone

          9  capability, to access an interpreter in over 150

         10  languages in less than five minutes.  This expands

         11  ACS' interpretation services and allows for

         12  immediate access where needed.

         13                 In addition, as you mentioned before,

         14  a group of Children's Services workers are currently

         15  working to test various hand held devices, to enable

         16  remote access to the State's Connections database,

         17  and as a result, they will be able to spend more

         18  time in the field.

         19                 ACS is also working with the Family

         20  Courts on two initiatives.  The first is to identify

         21  areas in each courthouse where field workers have

         22  access to connections, and the second is to provide

         23  ACS legal staff with access to their legal tracking

         24  system on a tablet PC.  The pilot for legal staff

         25  will continue through July at the Manhattan Family
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          2  Courthouse, after which ACS will consider expansion

          3  of the program.

          4                 The Department of Health and Mental

          5  Hygiene has a number of important hand held

          6  initiatives both underway and being explored for

          7  future development.  As you know, initiatives in

          8  production include the handheld applications for

          9  restaurants, Day Care and lead inspections.  In

         10  addition, DOHMH's Newborn Visits Handheld initiative

         11  allows public health advocates visiting new mothers,

         12  to promote infant care and apprise them of available

         13  resources.  Currently operated out of the Bedford

         14  District Public Health Office, this project is

         15  planned for expansion into the Bronx and Harlem

         16  offices.  The Health Department has also deployed

         17  handheld devices for a number of data intensive

         18  campaigns, such as its Clinic Management Survey and

         19  Smoking Cessation Campaign.

         20                 The Department of Health and Mental

         21  Hygiene's Radiological Van is a mobile unit that

         22  collects data which is then transferred wirelessly

         23  to the Health Department's network for analysis.  In

         24  addition, the agency has developed an Environmental

         25  Handheld for staff responding to potential
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          2  radiological incidents. A variety of environmental

          3  monitoring probes plug into the handheld device,

          4  which then wirelessly transfers data back to DOHMH

          5  in real time.

          6                 By September, there will be about 25

          7  Environmental Handhelds available for in house staff

          8  and participating agencies. An additional handheld

          9  application, the Radiological Equipment and

         10  Materials Tracking Handheld, or REMtrack, will

         11  expedite the City wide inspection and inventory

         12  processes behind the licensing of radiological

         13  equipment and materials.

         14                 In order to facilitate the

         15  acquisition of new technologies, DoITT has put in

         16  place a variety of enterprise contracts to leverage

         17  the City's buying power, and to reduce the time

         18  needed for agencies to launch new projects.  To

         19  improve the efficiency and effectiveness of their

         20  mobile deployments, agencies are using our quality

         21  assurance, project management and project monitoring

         22  contracts, as well as our City- wide systems

         23  integration contracts, specifically for handheld

         24  projects.  We are currently working with a number of

         25  agencies, including the Fire Department, the

                                                            18

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  Department of Environmental Protection and others,

          3  to explore how they may utilize the handheld

          4  contract for new and critical technology

          5  initiatives.

          6                 In addition, to ensure a method by

          7  which City agencies can convene around topics of

          8  common interest and offer feedback to do it, we have

          9  established a number of City- wide user groups, one

         10  of which is focused exclusively on handheld

         11  applications.  Attended by multiple agencies, these

         12  meetings grow the City's knowledge base on

         13  successful implementations. Participants use these

         14  meetings as an opportunity to exchange data and

         15  share lessons learned.  Last year, we had more than

         16  500 attendees from more than 40 agencies, at user

         17  group meetings.

         18                 Finally, DoITT is exploring ways to

         19  increase mobile access to our award winning website,

         20  NYC.gov.  Using third party software, we are

         21  planning to make agency and portal pages viewable in

         22  text only, and will modify the navigation scheme, so

         23  that mobile users can easily find information on the

         24  site.  We will also mobile enable a subset of

         25  NYC.gov applications, so they can be viewed on a
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          2  variety of handheld devices.  With this

          3  implementation, NYC.gov will be able to offer higher

          4  level of accessibility to our mobile users.

          5                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          6  describe many of our initiatives to support the

          7  City's mobile workforce.  I would now be pleased to

          8  answer any questions you have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 I am sorry my colleagues are not

         12  here, but hopefully they will get here.  Because for

         13  all of us, it is a big learning curve.

         14                 And congratulations, Commissioner, on

         15  all that you have accomplished.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Obviously, I am a

         19  big supporter of what you are doing, and hope that

         20  we can even do more.  But how does one measure

         21  productivity?  I know it is, you know, when you have

         22  a social service contract, which I am more familiar

         23  with, one of the academic institutions is able to

         24  often look at it and do an evaluation.  But I do not

         25  know how you, how do you go about thinking about the
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          2  measurement and the evaluation of this?

          3                 COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.  Before

          4  they are funded, all large scale technology projects

          5  undergo a rigorous review before they get funding

          6  approval, and we work very closely with the Mayor's

          7  Office of Operations in this regard.

          8                 Usually, in addition, as either there

          9  being contemplated or certainly once they are in

         10  place, large projects will be subject to project

         11  monitoring quality assurance, and project management

         12  vendor on our side who helps with insuring that

         13  deliverables are achieved, that the budget is not

         14  exceeded, and that the schedule is met.

         15                 We look for a variety of things

         16  before projects go forward.  The first is the

         17  strategic fit of the project with the City's and the

         18  agency's objectives.  Another thing that we look at,

         19  is the degree to which the project is consistent

         20  with the idea of re- engineering, so that we can

         21  streamline and make more efficient, the processes

         22  that we are looking at, so that we can get rid of

         23  paper, so that we do not have to have people travel

         24  to and from the office, as much.

         25                 We look at the return on investment.
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          2  What is the cost?  What is the benefit?  And we look

          3  at the ability to leverage our infrastructure and

          4  the architecture that is already in place, that

          5  DoITT can offer agencies.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  I know

          7  there was a wonderful story that was told by a

          8  friend of mine in Albany, not a City issuer,

          9  traditionally, somebody from the Department of Motor

         10  Vehicles had gone to a town about 100 miles north of

         11  Albany every month or so, to a little Town Hall to

         12  help the seniors get motor vehicle license.  You

         13  know, because they did not know how to use the

         14  computer.  And then when the computer came in, in

         15  other words, the Department of Motor Vehicles just

         16  did a complete re- working of their system, they no

         17  longer went out to the Town Hall.  And the seniors

         18  had to drive to Albany, because it was still a

         19  challenge to use a computer.  So, that is what I am

         20  saying when I say evaluation, sometimes you have to

         21  look to see for a particular group of people, does

         22  this make sense?  Because you do not want to leave

         23  anyone behind.  Is that also part of the evaluation?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: That is

         25  a very good point.
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          2                 I think the reason why you see

          3  implementation start small is because it is very

          4  important to engage the field worker in the process

          5  of determining the acceptance of the device, for

          6  example.  Some things to consider are the form

          7  factor, how much does it weigh?  What is the battery

          8  life?  How useable is it?  What we found, for

          9  example, with people who work in the field, that

         10  there is difficulty sometimes with glare or in

         11  certain types of weather.  So, you need to engage

         12  people who are going to be using the device in

         13  ensuring that it will ultimately be successful.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  What kind

         15  of training is required for mobile technology?

         16  Obviously, some is, and some of these challenges

         17  need to be addressed, perhaps in the training.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: But how do you go

         20  about it?  Is it a cost factor?  How do you go about

         21  thinking about it?  Is it done by DoITT?  By the

         22  vendor?  Obviously, you have to do ongoing training.

         23  ACS, I know there is a very large turnover for

         24  example.

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.
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          2  The way we typically do this is if there is a

          3  systems integrator, who is helping us with the

          4  deployment, that they will work with us on the

          5  initial training, and they will usually conduct to

          6  train the trainer, so that ongoing and future

          7  training is provided by the agency.

          8                 The training is critical to the

          9  success of any implementation, and it needs to be

         10  done well and thoroughly, so that people can, some

         11  of whom do not have a lot of computer experience,

         12  may not have specific knowledge of particular

         13  handheld device, can get up and running quickly.

         14  But the way to do it, is to bring them in early, and

         15  usually have them involved in structuring the

         16  training, so that it can be maximized in a

         17  successful --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Are the unions

         19  involved also?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Unions

         21  are typically involved in any such deployments.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Obviously,

         23  that feeds into the issue of maintenance and

         24  redundancy and I mean, we all walk around sometimes

         25  with different devices, and sometimes they work and
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          2  sometimes they do not.  Obviously, in your

          3  situation, obviously, public safety is one issue,

          4  but you know, being in the field for restaurant

          5  inspector or newborn, can also have its challenges

          6  and could be a security for the family involved.

          7  So, how do you deal with redundancy and maintenance?

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

          9  You mentioned a lot of issues.  I should tell you

         10  that this morning when I was coming here, I have

         11  nine year old twins, and my daughter, when I told

         12  her that I was coming to speak to you about mobile

         13  computing and the mobile workforce, she said, Dad,

         14  you work all the time on your Blackberry and you

         15  have three devices on your belt, so you know a lot

         16  about this subject.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Good for your

         18  daughter.  I think your daughter knows quite a bit,

         19  also.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: She

         21  does, actually.  She does.  They both do.

         22                 With regard to security, there is a

         23  need to ensure that devices in the field do not have

         24  any data that can be accessible if the device is

         25  lost or stolen.
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          2                 With regard to redundancy, part of

          3  the reason we are building out the City- wide Mobile

          4  Wireless Network, will be to afford a greater level

          5  of redundancy and back up power for particularly,

          6  first responders.  Many of the devices that we have

          7  mentioned in my testimony and that you have

          8  mentioned, have a capability for store and forward.

          9  So, if they are not always electronically connected

         10  or wirelessly connected to the network, they can

         11  store the information or forward it.  In some cases

         12  people do, in fact return to their district office

         13  and sink at the location.  So, there are a variety

         14  of tools and techniques that agencies use to meet

         15  their business needs.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: On the security,

         17  if one does lose it, is it -- how does one secure,

         18  just out of curiosity.  Is that a password

         19  situation?  I mean, these devices will get lost.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: In most

         21  cases, there is encryption and there is certainly

         22  password and login features.  And in many cases, and

         23  I think that one of the things that we are seeing

         24  more so, is that people are going to be connecting

         25  over the internet in a secure manner to an
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          2  application that would be similar to what they might

          3  find on their desktop, except it will be sized for

          4  the mobile device.  And so, there will be no

          5  information that is actually on the client's or

          6  subscriber device, but it is all at the central

          7  office, and they are just reaching it through the

          8  internet.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: There is a lot of

         10  training involved in this.

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: There

         12  is training, and I think though, what you find, is a

         13  great level of acceptance, because the workforce is

         14  professionalized.  They feel that they are enabled

         15  to be more efficient and productive, and we are

         16  helping them, and they are helping themselves to get

         17  their jobs done in a more efficient way,

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  I know you

         19  talked about NYC.gov, but what are you doing to

         20  develop a wireless internet system for use by City

         21  employees?  Maybe you referred to that when you were

         22  talking about NYC.gov.

         23                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes,

         24  there is a variety of ways that agencies now

         25  connect.  Part of it is that they are using the
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          2  commercial networks.  To connect wirelessly, the

          3  costs have come down, and they will continue to do

          4  so, and in addition, part of the reason why we are

          5  building out of the City- wide Mobile Wireless

          6  Network, is because agencies approached us, and they

          7  were asking for ways to connect in a robust and

          8  secure manner that had redundancy and security built

          9  in.  And rather than have each agency go about and

         10  build out their own network, DoITT proposed to build

         11  out one City- wide Mobile Wireless Network that

         12  could be used for all City agencies, primarily first

         13  responders.  But it is certainly everyone who needs

         14  that kind of connectivity.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Because I know it

         16  was talked about and we have had other hearings on

         17  this, regarding first responders.  But in your

         18  testimony, you did say other agencies.

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes,

         20  absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And what does

         22  that -- does that mean ACS?  Does that mean -- how

         23  do you decide?

         24                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: It will

         25  be -- we will roll it out first in the primary uses
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          2  for first responders, but that network will be made

          3  available to every agency that could use it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  What kind

          5  of data, I mentioned, I think, earlier, about data

          6  sharing.  The best example, because of my work with

          7  so many inspections, Housing and Buildings, needless

          8  to say, those websites are much better, really,

          9  really accessible.  But I do not know that there is

         10  a lot of data sharing between those two agencies,

         11  and you could multiply that to the Fire Department,

         12  which also does inspections, Health Department for

         13  Pest, et cetera.  So, how does the data sharing,

         14  what is the status and -- it is a big issue.  I am

         15  aware of that.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

         17  It is a big issue. And what we are seeing happening

         18  is that often agencies will develop one application

         19  for one inspectional program.  We saw that in the

         20  case of the Buildings Department and DCAS, for

         21  example.

         22                 Another example, is in Health and

         23  Mental Hygiene. One application is built for one

         24  inspectional program, and then it gets deployed

         25  across other inspectional programs in the agency.
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          2  There is a tremendous amount of information sharing

          3  among CIO's and IT staff.  We have facilitated that

          4  through our user group meetings, as I mentioned in

          5  my testimony.  There is a user group that is

          6  specifically focused on issues around handhelds.

          7  There is also a contract that is specifically

          8  focused for handhelds, so that we can get deployment

          9  more quickly up and running.  But there is constant,

         10  particularly around building information.  We are

         11  going to be using many of the tools that we have.

         12                 For example, the data share tool that

         13  allows us to bring, to use a middle ware solution so

         14  that agencies can connect to a central repository of

         15  information, and get everything that they need, for

         16  example, around particular buildings as they are

         17  going into the field.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So, middle ware

         19  solution is coming, sort of.  In other words,

         20  because I know now it is difficult for Buildings and

         21  HPD to share.

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: They

         23  are doing it much more effectively than in the past.

         24    They are constantly in communication and sending

         25  data back and forth, particularly those two
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          2  agencies.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: All right, so in

          4  other words, if you are in a building as an HPD,

          5  Housing Preservation Development, you see code,

          6  which is what HPD does, and then there is a

          7  structural, meaning there is a wall that is

          8  collapsed or whatever Buildings would note, then you

          9  can wirely (sic.) tell the Buildings Department that

         10  there is a need for an inspection?  I think there is

         11  still a phone call.

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes, I

         13  do not know if the HPD inspectors have handhelds

         14  that do exactly what you have described. But they

         15  should have the information they need to be able to

         16  go into a building and know the condition of the

         17  building.  And we are working with all agencies to

         18  do the assessment to determine what is the priority

         19  in terms of their build outs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, because I

         21  still think that needs to be implemented.

         22                 I just had a question because you

         23  were talking about some of the Health Department

         24  initiatives.  And obviously, translation is one that

         25  comes into many different forms.  When a Health
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          2  Department inspector is at a hospital, even at a

          3  restaurant, because they have different functions,

          4  are they able to access -- I know you mentioned ACS

          5  because, of course, if you are in a home and a

          6  different language is spoken and there is a crisis,

          7  definitely language is helpful.  But the same would

          8  be true for health.  I do know that is an expensive

          9  service.

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We are

         11  just putting in place now a new language

         12  interpretation contract that will be available to

         13  City agencies, so that we can leverage the City-

         14  wide cost.  And that will be available, it started

         15  with 311 services, but it has expanded to across the

         16  City and that is now moving into place so that

         17  agencies like Health or the Taxi Limousine

         18  Commission and others, will be able to have access

         19  to that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Another

         21  topic, which I know we have not mentioned, is

         22  Cultural Affairs.  It would not seem to the public,

         23  perhaps, as important as Health and Safety.  But it

         24  is to those of us, I think for tourism, and just for

         25  Mental Health, shall we say, Cultural Affairs.
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          2                 So my question is, I know that the

          3  Alliance for the Arts is a large non profit, and

          4  they have an incredible data base, and I do not know

          5  if you are aware of it, it is a data base that will

          6  list every single cultural opportunity.  Meaning,

          7  even if you are a large University and you have a

          8  theater in it, it will list all of this, and the

          9  times and the capacity, et cetera.  And I just

         10  mentioned this because it would be the kind of place

         11  that eventually 311 could plug into, but it is also

         12  the kind of sort of innovative way that real time

         13  information can flow.  Is that something that you

         14  are aware of, with a very, very large data base?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes, it

         16  sounds great.  If you would have them contact me, I

         17  would be happy to talk about how we can connect with

         18  them through 311 or NYC.gov.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  How do the

         20  unions get involved in these many changes?  What is

         21  the actual way?

         22                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We work

         23  through the Office of Labor Relations when there is

         24  the introduction of new technology. So that unions

         25  are informed and apprised, they often will be
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          2  involved in some of the selection of training type

          3  materials, so that they are engaged along with the

          4  workforce to ensure that we can have a successful

          5  roll out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And the

          7  other issue, of course, is I know when ACS testified

          8  on their many concerns, one of their -- they are

          9  very happy working with you, but obviously, the

         10  State data base is a challenge.  Is that something

         11  that you think is able to be dealt with?  Because it

         12  is true, I think also, with Human Resources,

         13  wherever there is a large primarily in the social

         14  services world, I would assume.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We have

         16  a very strong relationship with the CIO of the State

         17  of New York.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I think I used to

         19  be around here, at one point.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: That is

         21  right.  And they have worked very hard at the level

         22  of the State to deal with the issues of connections

         23  with regard to ensuring better access, faster

         24  response times, and greater up time.  And ACS

         25  informs me that there is still improvement needed,
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          2  but that things are far better than they were

          3  several months ago.  And that is something that

          4  needs to be monitored in an ongoing way.  And I

          5  would say for the most part, that the State has been

          6  very cooperative and responsive to our needs.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  There is a

          8  lot of discussion around GPS and GIS.  Now, some of

          9  that will come, I assume, when the determination of

         10  the security data base is implemented.  So, that you

         11  have a better sense for the first responders.  That

         12  will be more of a test, is that correct?  In other

         13  words, particularly in the GIS front, the hope is to

         14  be able for a fire fighter to know what is exactly

         15  on the premises, and I assume something similar for

         16  the Police Department --

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: -- And first

         19  responders, in general.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: The

         21  idea is to be able to provide maps for people in the

         22  field who need them, both to see where they are on a

         23  map, as well as to determine maps of building lay

         24  outs, and so on.  We are currently implementing AVL,

         25  Automatic Vehicle Location, in the Fire Department.
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          2  Expectations are that it will be fully deployed for

          3  EMS by June, and later in the year, for the Fire

          4  Department apparatus for fire response.  And so,

          5  that has been enormously successful.  The early

          6  tests, I do not have recent data, but the early

          7  tests show that the EMS response time in those pilot

          8  areas in Staten Island and Southern Brooklyn,

          9  improved by about thirty seconds, which is quite

         10  significant in EMS response time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And GPS is also

         12  somewhat controversial, not GIS, but GPS.  And I was

         13  wondering what the status, if any, of GPS deployment

         14  is?  The Sanitation Department, I think, was using

         15  it.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: In the

         17  past, they have. There is a great deal of interest

         18  among City agencies for the use of AVL and GPS

         19  devices.  So, that employees who are in vehicles and

         20  other sorts of apparatus have the ability to see

         21  where they are on the map or be routed through their

         22  dispatch centers.  And to be able to go in a more

         23  efficient way around, for example, if there is

         24  ultimately, I think we will be able to have the

         25  ability to route vehicles around construction,
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          2  around parades or things like that, so it could

          3  happen in a more real time manner, than currently

          4  exists, for example, if you have GPS in your car.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And just

          6  finally, I know that there is discussion about a

          7  wireless City, not the Philadelphia model, not the

          8  San Francisco model, not the Chicago model, but our

          9  own model.  And I was wondering just generally, if

         10  we are thinking about this, and I know that EVC and

         11  you have been talking about it.  Not happening yet,

         12  but we are all talking about it.  How would that

         13  change some of this for the field workers? That is

         14  what I am most concerned about.  That is why we are

         15  really having this hearing, to think more about our

         16  own workers.  Would it enable you to implement some

         17  of these field work technology more rapidly?  Or

         18  maybe you just need to see how the study comes out?

         19                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I think

         20  we need to see how the study comes out and what

         21  other Cities are doing and how successful large

         22  Cities will be.  I think the City of New York

         23  presents enormous challenges in that regard, and

         24  that is really why we have opted to go for the City-

         25  wide Mobile Wireless project, which will allow the
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          2  capabilities that we need in terms of coverage and

          3  redundancy and priority service.  So, that the

          4  agencies that need that kind of coverage, can have

          5  it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  And then

          7  of course, a question I know that we always have is,

          8  that as you roll this out, is there still any

          9  further discussion about how the public can access?

         10  I know that you are very concerned about security,

         11  but we are always trying, again, something that I

         12  know may be determined if we have more studies, but

         13  how the public can access.

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I think

         15  the issue of public access is something that is in

         16  the news almost every day.  And as I mentioned, we

         17  are watching with great interest what other Cities

         18  are doing, and we are carefully considering what

         19  kinds of options are happening in the City.  As you

         20  know, we are taking a little bit more of a focused

         21  approach, for example, what the parks are doing and

         22  so on, so that it can be utilized in a focused way.

         23  And we will see what the level of response is, both

         24  by the vendor community and by the public, with

         25  regard to those kinds of things.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Thank you

          3  very much, Commissioner.

          4                 I know that it is ongoing and this is

          5  helpful, particularly for us today, but also as we

          6  have some of the hearing's oversight of other

          7  agencies.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Our next panel is

         12  Lawrence Kanfo, Executive Advisor, Cisco Internet

         13  Business Solutions, and Yorke Rhodes, Principle

         14  Public Safety and Security at IBM.  And then we will

         15  have a panel after that.

         16                 MR. KNAFO: Good morning, Chairperson

         17  Brewer and members of the Council's Committee on

         18  Technology in Government.  My name is Lawrence Knafo

         19  and I an advisor with Cisco's Internet Business

         20  Solutions Group, otherwise known as IBSG.

         21                 I will paraphrase a little bit here

         22  today to keep this a little shorter.

         23                 Mobility is an area that Cisco has

         24  focused on and has adopted as a core means of doing

         25  business.  So, what exactly do we mean when we talk
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          2  about mobility?  Enterprise mobility is about

          3  providing ubiquitous connectivity for the mobile

          4  user, so that they can stay connected and productive

          5  wherever they go, using a personal digital

          6  assistant, a PDA, a mobile laptop, a cell phone, or

          7  even a home computer.  Mobility helps government

          8  stay closer to its customers, whether they are

          9  residents, businesses, or visitors, in ways never

         10  before imagined.

         11                 At Cisco, we have invested in

         12  productivity tools and mobility solutions that have

         13  helped save the company approximately $20 million

         14  dollars per year.  Mobility applications help our

         15  field force be effective, independent of location,

         16  because we have made mobility a part of our culture.

         17    And ultimately, that mobility is a major factor in

         18  our ability to remain competitive.  In fact, the

         19  effort that went into preparing for today's

         20  testimony, is a great example of employee mobility

         21  at Cisco.  This testimony was put together after

         22  viewing corporate research delivered through video

         23  on demand testimonials, that I accessed from out

         24  corporate internet while traveling, by downloading

         25  research and presentations over wireless networks at

                                                            40

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  remote sites, and by writing the actual testimonial

          3  on my laptop, in your district, in Central Park.

          4                 So, now you understand how Cisco is

          5  using mobility. But what makes that mobility so

          6  exciting for government?  Mobility is the tool that

          7  will allow government to expand its reach and

          8  transform the manner in which services are

          9  delivered.  Mobility will take government

         10  transformation beyond customer service and allow

         11  government to actually deliver more with less.

         12  Mobility brings government to the doorstep of

         13  communities.

         14                 In the past ten years, the power of

         15  the internet has allowed government to re- invent

         16  itself.  And in doing so, vastly improve the manner

         17  in which it interacts with the public.  Mobility

         18  will take this transformation one step further by

         19  allowing government to mobilize and virtualize,

         20  thereby improving the manner in which government

         21  itself performs.

         22                 In what I think is the first

         23  transformation of the digital age, E- government

         24  provided an on line aggregation of content and

         25  allowed the public to access government information
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          2  and services, 24 hours a day, via the internet.

          3  This transformation was not insignificant.  For the

          4  first time, the public was able to dictate when they

          5  conducted business with government and was finally

          6  provided with a way to learn about all that

          7  government has to offer.

          8                 In the second transformation,

          9  government contact centers, such as 211 and 311,

         10  removed a layer of the digital divide, and provided

         11  even greater access to government services, by

         12  providing in essence, a government valet, whose job

         13  it was to help callers navigate the vast array of

         14  service offered by government. In this

         15  transformation, traditional agency boundaries were

         16  crossed, and government was given the ability to

         17  look at performance metrics and determine where

         18  government services were not meeting expectations.

         19                 While E- government and 311 made it

         20  easier to connect and receive government services,

         21  both have unleashed a latent demand for service that

         22  has increased the burden placed on employees and

         23  agency management.  It is here where mobility comes

         24  into play.

         25                 Mobility has the potential to drive
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          2  the next radical transformation of government.

          3  Through mobility, we have the potential to

          4  virtualize traditional government structures.

          5  NYC.gov and 311, gave New Yorkers access to

          6  government, where they wanted, when they wanted.

          7  Mobility allows government employees to provide

          8  service anywhere, at anytime from any device.  With

          9  all the tools in power, the government employees

         10  have when in the comfort of their own offices.

         11                 This has huge implications.  For the

         12  first time, field employees will not have to travel

         13  back and forth to field offices at the beginning and

         14  end of each day.  Instead, they can be deployed

         15  directly into the field, saving valuable time and

         16  increasing productivity.  As handheld devices are

         17  tied directly to location based services, such as

         18  GPS and AVL, something that is happening today in

         19  the Fire Department, government will gain the

         20  ability to dynamically reroute employees based on

         21  demand and priority.

         22                 Imagine the power this can have

         23  during the cold months of winter when 311 receives

         24  thousands of calls for apartments without heat.

         25  Instead of having to print out daily appointment
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          2  schedules, inspectors can simply look at their

          3  handheld devices to determine where their next

          4  appointment is.  The system will determine which

          5  incident is the most serious and who the closest

          6  inspector is.  Once at the apartment, the inspector

          7  will have up to date records on previous violations

          8  across all agencies, so that he or she knows if this

          9  is simply a first time violation or the result of a

         10  chronic offender.  Then, dynamically, violations can

         11  be issued and problems can be resolved.

         12                 This may sound futuristic, but the

         13  reality is that mobility is here now, and it has

         14  been for years.  In fact, when I first started

         15  working for the City in the early 1990's, I was a

         16  mobile worker.  Every day, I would log on to a

         17  mobile computer in my ambulance and receive 911

         18  calls and information via that computer.  Take a

         19  moment to think about how important this fact is.

         20  What is arguably the City's most critical service,

         21  emergency dispatch, has been provided as a mobile

         22  service for over fifteen years.  That is from the

         23  days prior to what we currently know as the

         24  internet.  Since then, the internet has entered our

         25  lives, and changed how we live, work and play.
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          2  Imagine today's possibilities with the internet on

          3  our side.

          4                 In fact, governments around the world

          5  are already relying on mobility solutions to improve

          6  productivity.  From public safety to inspectors,

          7  mobility is changing the way government responds to

          8  calls for service.

          9                 Everett, Washington is one of the

         10  nation's fastest growing cities.  Using Cisco

         11  technology, Everett has extended their municipal

         12  network to field force police officers.  Relying on

         13  this technology, officers now spend more time on the

         14  street where they have access to critical

         15  information.  This saves them time, keeps the police

         16  where they are needed, and allows officers to be

         17  more productive.  The bottom line, mobility can save

         18  lives.

         19                 I would caution you to think about

         20  mobility for more that just a field worker

         21  perspective.  Mobility is about extending the work

         22  place to wherever it is needed.  As governments

         23  prepare to react to threats, such as a global

         24  pandemic, mobility offers government the ability to

         25  keep employees working, when it may be impractical
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          2  to office locations.  And it does not take a global

          3  pandemic to keep employees at home.  Think back to

          4  the recent transit strike.  Many corporations and

          5  government entities struggled to get employees into

          6  work, by setting up shuttles or car pools.  Would it

          7  not have been just easier to let non essential

          8  employees work from home?

          9                 After years of working in government,

         10  one of my biggest life style changes upon joining

         11  Cisco, was in my new ability to work from home, when

         12  not traveling.  In fact, I am confident that this

         13  new arrangement has made me far more productive,

         14  allowed me to concentrate more on my work, and

         15  simultaneously, to better mange issues in my

         16  personal life.

         17                 While remote working has become a

         18  routine event for me, it was still difficult for me

         19  to comprehend the concept of government employees

         20  working at home on a regular basis.  Perhaps that

         21  might only happen one day per week, it still seemed

         22  to go against the grain of government for an

         23  employee not to be at their desk every day.

         24                 That was, until recently.  About two

         25  months ago, I was meeting with a group of agency
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          2  heads in the State of Utah.  We were discussing

          3  innovations in government, when we started talking

          4  about the concept of remote working for government

          5  employees.  I was shocked when I asked the group

          6  which agencies had employees regularly working from

          7  home.  Nearly every agency had reported having some

          8  at home workers.  They all noted the success of the

          9  arrangement and stated they expected the trend to

         10  continue.  I am now a believer that remote working,

         11  even in government, is possible, with the right

         12  controls, and when focused on the right sets of

         13  employees.

         14                 In fact, mobility goes even farther

         15  than the employee work force.  Increasingly, the

         16  concept of mobility is about expending the reach of

         17  government to provide greater coverage, and to do so

         18  in a more efficient manner.

         19                 As more and more devices connect to

         20  the internet, we gain the ability to extend the

         21  reach of government without increasing the number of

         22  employees.  For instance, remote sensors now allow

         23  us to monitor tunnels and subways for chemical and

         24  biological dispersion.

         25                 In Corpus Christie, Texas, remote
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          2  sensors on water and gas meters are used to

          3  eliminate the need for physical meter readings,

          4  allowing employees to be freed up for other more

          5  critical work.  The new use of the technology is

          6  projected to decrease the cost per meter reading,

          7  from $1.70, to less than ten cents, while reducing

          8  meter work orders by seventy five percent, customer

          9  calls by 30 percent, and by providing proactive

         10  customer service by notifying customers of potential

         11  water or gas leaks.  To me, that is an example of

         12  government providing value and serve in a manner

         13  that is responsible, innovative and cost effective.

         14                 Obviously, there are differences

         15  between the public and private sector.  And in many

         16  cases, those differences minimize the positive

         17  change that can be enacted.  However, it is

         18  important to at least understand where the private

         19  sector has gained benefits, through the value of

         20  mobility.

         21                 The Telework Association and Council

         22  estimates that 50 to 70 percent of office space is

         23  unoccupied during normal business hours.  This means

         24  that corporations are paying for space that is

         25  unused.
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          2                 AT&T estimates that mobility has

          3  given remote workers an extra 80 minutes per day.

          4  That translates to six and a half hours per week.

          5  The market research firm, NOP World Technology found

          6  that workers can stay connected an additional three

          7  and a half hours a day, resulting in a 27 percent

          8  increase in productivity.  Whichever number you look

          9  at, the bottom line is that people are doing more of

         10  their work outside of the office and turning what is

         11  typically non productive time, into productive time.

         12                 Finally, just last week,

         13  Transportation Secretary, Norman Mineta, said that

         14  roadway congestion cost the U.S. Some $200 billion

         15  dollars per year, wastes up to 8.7 billion liters of

         16  fuel, and costs 3.7 billion working hours per year.

         17  Think how relevant each of those statistics are.

         18  Less workers commuting to office, environments means

         19  less congestion.  Less congestion, means less fuel

         20  consumption, and less wasted work time, means more

         21  productivity.

         22                 Whether you are concerned about the

         23  environment, employee quality of life or employee

         24  productivity, it seems that mobility has the

         25  potential to make a positive impact in many areas of
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          2  our lives.

          3                 Mobility is changing the way that we

          4  live our lives. As today's youth grow up, with the

          5  internet ingrained in their daily activities, they

          6  will expect government to provide services in a

          7  manner consistent with how they live their lives.

          8  They will expect government to deliver services

          9  faster, with instant feedback and with a focus on

         10  customer service.  And why should they expect any

         11  less?

         12                 When the cell phone first came to

         13  market, people thought that high prices and large

         14  devices would make cellular service a toy for the

         15  rich.  Boy, were they wrong.  Today, I would argue

         16  that wi- fi and wireless broadband access will do

         17  for data, what the cellular industry did for

         18  telephones.  No longer will government systems be

         19  limited to performing at government facilities, and

         20  no longer will government employees be limited to

         21  being productive at their desk tops.  The power of

         22  mobility will bring government to the doorstep of

         23  all New Yorkers, to use it how they want, when they

         24  want and where they want.  Tomorrow's government is

         25  reliant on mobility.  This government will be
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          2  delivered anytime, anywhere and from any device.

          3                 Thank you for your time today.  I

          4  would be happy to answer any questions you might

          5  have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Mr. Rhodes, and then we will go to

          9  questions.

         10                 MR. RHODES: Thank you very much.  Can

         11  you hear me?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Push, I think.

         13  It should be on. This is the new technology.  I

         14  think it works.  Otherwise, use Larry's, there you

         15  go.

         16                 MR. RHODES: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  speak today about the topic of mobile and wireless

         20  computing, which are inextricably linked to each

         21  other.

         22                 Following on Larry's comments about

         23  mobile computing and harkening back to the days

         24  prior to cell phones, it is a very good analogy too,

         25  if you look back fifteen years, approximately, or
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          2  for most of us did not carry a cell phone in the

          3  early 90's, and the concept today of not carrying a

          4  cell phone is almost unheard of.

          5                 So, think of that from a mobile

          6  computing perspective identically.  Or what you can

          7  do today at your desk like you used to do with your

          8  desk phone, you should be able to do anywhere you

          9  are, either in a connected or a disconnected

         10  fashion, with some type of mobile device, whether it

         11  is a PDA or a laptop or other type of handheld.

         12                 So, as we look at the communities

         13  that are forging forward with mobile connectivity,

         14  they are looking at it either from a mobile

         15  enablement perspective, or from a wireless mobile

         16  enablement perspective.  And there are a number of

         17  requisite technologies and support infrastructures

         18  that certainly do it, and other agencies are forging

         19  ahead with, in order to support these types of

         20  environments.

         21                 But I urge you to keep in mind, it is

         22  very difficult to think of what a connected

         23  community really is.  And you have to spend some

         24  time really thinking hard about what it means to be

         25  truly connected, and truly connected, wherever you
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          2  are.

          3                 And we are seeing that in communities

          4  across the country and around the world.  I will

          5  talk about a couple of examples of different types

          6  of things that we are seeing different communities

          7  do, and try to help expand your thought process

          8  beyond the concept of a mobile worker with a laptop,

          9  as being mobile computing, to being much more

         10  pervasive in all of the types of things that we do.

         11                 Mobile communication historically, we

         12  have seen PDA's and Blackberries and laptops as

         13  really the starting point for mobile communities and

         14  digital communities.  And if you sort of look across

         15  the horizon of what we do in government, and also in

         16  the commercial sector, of all the types of things

         17  that could be mobile enabled and you see some

         18  examples of some old analog equipment here.  But, as

         19  we provide mobile capability and connectivity to the

         20  field, we improve the ability to collect data from

         21  the field.  And there are significant benefits to

         22  that.  Law enforcement has a key example, and Larry

         23  mentioned this and Commissioner Bergmann was talking

         24  very extensively about this.  It has historically

         25  been a mobile computing environment, albeit with
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          2  limited connectivity, but with very redundant and

          3  scaleable (sic.) Systems to support large work

          4  forces, whether local in the community or across the

          5  Federal government, as an example.  Utility workers,

          6  as well, have had similar types of connectivity.

          7                 So, as we look to the broad spectrum

          8  of things that can be connected, and as we look from

          9  analog systems into the digital world, anything that

         10  is digital, or that can be digitized, even if it is

         11  analog, can be connected and transmitted across a

         12  wireless data network of the future.  Once you

         13  digitize that data, it has now become accessible to

         14  mobile computing in either a store and forward

         15  nature, or a real time connected nature.  Real time,

         16  of course, requires some type of connectivity.

         17  Historically, we have seen it provided by commercial

         18  carriers or, as I said, public safety type of

         19  systems.

         20                 In other geographies around the

         21  country and around the world, we are seeing

         22  different types of mobile and wireless computing

         23  being enabled by the networks of tomorrow.  And if

         24  you look at conceptionally this as an enabling

         25  platform for connectivity, what we are seeing is,

                                                            54

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  from a government perspective, if you think about

          3  the things that you do today within the government

          4  on your internet, and the things that you access

          5  today from an agency perspective when you are at

          6  your desk, or you are grabbing something off your

          7  files.  Conceptionally, you want to think about your

          8  digital computing environment as extending that to

          9  wherever you are in the field, or at home.

         10                 Disaster relief just briefly, is a

         11  key example of a beneficiary of a mobile computing

         12  environment.  There were a couple of comments

         13  earlier about store and forward.  The nature of

         14  store and forward technology is whether it is a

         15  Blackberry or other PDA type of device, means that

         16  you have some local copy of the data. If you are

         17  thinking about disaster recovery and you are

         18  thinking about what does it mean to lose my address

         19  book or my telephone number or my calendar, if my

         20  systems go down because of power failures, having a

         21  mobile computing, battery operated device like a

         22  cell phone or a PDA, is a significant advantage to

         23  keep you connected to the rest of the world.  And

         24  minimally knowing what your calendar looks like, for

         25  the next couple of weeks and having your contact
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          2  information.  So, it should not be underestimated

          3  the simplicity of something like a Blackberry, as it

          4  relates to disaster scenarios.

          5                 In addition, as corporations, both

          6  financial sector and otherwise, have looked at

          7  remote computing for enabling their mobile

          8  workforces, they realize significant benefits from a

          9  disaster recovery's perspective because they realize

         10  that if I can scale up as a corporation, if I can

         11  scale up my remote access capabilities in a time of

         12  disaster when people cannot get to work, and they

         13  have to work at home, that I can actually enable

         14  them through some very sophisticated, but

         15  unchallenging technologies from an un- user

         16  perspective, the ability to actually get into

         17  critical systems, in order to perform work remotely

         18  from wherever they happen to be in the world.

         19                 A couple of more examples, we talked

         20  about inspections.  I think inspections is a big

         21  area of mobile computing in the Health Care and the

         22  Child Welfare and the Elderly Care space, and

         23  different types of public safety inspections, as

         24  well, around Buildings.  And we have seen some

         25  implementations locally of these, as well.  These
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          2  types of systems benefit the whole spectrum of

          3  population within a municipality, not just the

          4  government worker who gains more efficiency.  And it

          5  is important to realize the significant benefits

          6  that can accrue from putting these types of systems

          7  in place.

          8                 If you look at the generic high level

          9  view of the required support systems, you are

         10  talking about the field devices which we have spent

         11  a great deal of time talking about.  But there is

         12  also significant infrastructure and connectivity

         13  requirements on the back end, in order to enable a

         14  mobile workforce and a mobile computing environment.

         15

         16                 In addition to that, as the devices

         17  grow within your agency, the support and the

         18  services around those devices is important to take

         19  into consideration.  We talked a little bit about

         20  training earlier.  Training is a big enabler that

         21  really keeps some of the support requirements lower

         22  at the back end.  But there are certainly other

         23  services and I will speak briefly to those, as well,

         24  that are required.

         25                 I showed a couple of examples.  These
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          2  are mostly mobile computing type of devices, PDA's

          3  or mobile printers, like you see with the very

          4  efficient traffic police now.  Sometimes too

          5  efficient.  I watch them with a lot of disdain on my

          6  block, as they walk up to a car and scan the bar

          7  code, and the little print out prints on their

          8  pocket and it is just too efficient for my liking.

          9  But the concept there is that if you look at their

         10  environment and use them as an example, they

         11  basically are doing a local printout of an exact

         12  copy of what is going to be presented to a Judge, if

         13  you ever go before a hearing.  But, it is also

         14  stored in the data base in a digitized form

         15  centrally.  Temporarily, it is on a PDA. There is

         16  very little data entry that they are doing.  They

         17  are basically scanning the VIN code off of your car,

         18  and the inspection information, through the bar code

         19  on their PDA device, and then clicking a couple of

         20  things about where you are.  So, the data collection

         21  that they are doing at the point of interaction, is

         22  much more efficient, less error prone, and it is

         23  just one key example of the types of people that you

         24  see around the City doing mobile computing on a

         25  daily basis from a government worker perspective.
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          2                 Bottom left hand picture here, is

          3  actually a parking, multi space parking meter.

          4  There are some of these around New York City.  This

          5  happens to be the device that is used in Miami

          6  Beach, Florida.  And these devices can be used, and

          7  will likely be used as the future of parking around

          8  the world.  They enable you to use digital card

          9  formats, debit cards, credit cards for parking. And

         10  this device would typically replace a whole street

         11  of parking meters and all of the sudden, enable

         12  parking to be done in a much more digitized fashion,

         13  which basically allows you to be more efficient in

         14  collecting the fares, instead of having workers

         15  going out and collecting quarters.  You are

         16  effectively taking payments across the air through

         17  some type of connection.  In Miami Beach, this

         18  device is actually going to be wirelessly enabled

         19  and connected into their City- wide Wireless

         20  Network, that we are working on them with.

         21                 If you look at infrastructure

         22  requirements, whenever you have mobile computers or

         23  people connecting into your internal network, they

         24  have to go through a security infrastructure.  I

         25  know DoITT has got a security infrastructure set up
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          2  for this.  Depending on where your mobile workers

          3  are, this security infrastructure is better in

          4  sourced (sic.) Or out sourced.  If you have global

          5  employees like Cisco or IBM, we typically would out

          6  source a piece of this so that we can take advantage

          7  of a global dialing infrastructure like a carrier

          8  partner would have and enable us to very easily roll

          9  out the software, and yet support that particular

         10  user, in any geography in the world.

         11                 The thin client SSL VPN technology is

         12  somewhat new technology, but is a very secure way of

         13  connecting a VPN connection without having to have a

         14  significant piece of software downloaded onto an un-

         15  user device.  So, typically it is a small download

         16  over the connection, and it can be done over the air

         17  or to an internet terminal, so that you can securely

         18  connect back into your agency's systems.

         19                 In conjunction with this terminal

         20  service is certainly a very old technology, but has

         21  also been enabled into the internet era in the last

         22  few years, so that you can sit down essentially at

         23  an internet kiosk, download a secure connection to

         24  that kiosk so that you can securely connect back

         25  into your systems.
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          2                 Again, you know, a way to very easily

          3  enable mobile computing without providing mobile

          4  devices, but also a way to enable disaster recovery

          5  solutions, whereby you do not have to secure, ship

          6  and maintain laptops.  And this is one of the key

          7  problems in disaster recovery scenarios is where is

          8  your pool of laptops?  How do you get them to your

          9  employees?  So, thinking about the requisite support

         10  infrastructure that enables you to connect remotely

         11  without physical device that might be provisioned by

         12  your agency, is an important consideration.

         13                 We talked a lot about PDA's and

         14  Blackberries. Essentially, these are store and

         15  forward or synchronized solutions that can either

         16  work connected to a desktop or connected to your

         17  agency network or over the air.  And over the air,

         18  essentially means it will have a secure connection

         19  back to your agency network through whatever carrier

         20  or wi- fi or other environment, that you might

         21  happen to be using.

         22                 From a mobile computing perspective,

         23  once you get beyond the infrastructure and you start

         24  to look at the sophistication of what you are trying

         25  to do, which this happens to be where a lot of
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          2  agencies actually start, is they look at, what am I

          3  trying to do with my forms?  Whether it is an

          4  Environmental Protection form or other type of form,

          5  and how do I get that form to the field, and then

          6  they kind of flow down to all of the other

          7  infrastructure requirements.

          8                 So, there are solutions that enable

          9  you to better create and maintain, maintain probably

         10  being the more important term here, the solutions

         11  for enabling those forms on a mobile basis across

         12  your agency, as well as out through the environment

         13  within which you are working.

         14                 From a connectivity perspective, you

         15  want to think about a wired connection, a store and

         16  forward, or a synchronized connection, wireless

         17  connections and then whether things need to be real

         18  time, or whether they can be batched until the end

         19  of the day, or the end of a shift, for example.

         20                 This is a diagram really just to sort

         21  of look at what type of support infrastructure is

         22  required from a technology infrastructure

         23  perspective, in order to support a mobile connection

         24  into your enterprise.  And it really is just there

         25  to depict essentially, a wireless network, whether
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          2  it is provided by a commercial carrier or whether it

          3  is provided in hot zones or throughout our entire

          4  community, has to be secure.  The concept of

          5  connecting over a wireless network by its nature,

          6  requires you to make sure that your device is

          7  secure, that the link is secure, and that the

          8  connection and the authentication back into your

          9  agency is secure, as well.  So, there is a

         10  significant amount of security thought process and

         11  infrastructure associated with connecting these

         12  devices.

         13                 Device management should not be

         14  under- estimated.  If you have a pool of laptops or

         15  PDA's or Blackberries or what have you, they have

         16  different types of hardware and hardware versions,

         17  and software and software versions.  And all these

         18  things need to be maintained and managed by a

         19  support team, whether it is an in house team, our an

         20  out sourced team, so that when somebody has

         21  somewhere to go when their laptop does not work.

         22  Where do I take my laptop or my Blackberry, or what

         23  have you, when it does not work?  And what do those

         24  people do with it when I arrive at their desk and

         25  say it does not work?  So, there is a significant
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          2  support infrastructure that needs to be considered

          3  when dealing with a mobile computering environment.

          4                 Typically, in a desktop computing

          5  environment, we have seen this, but the days of

          6  desktop computing have arrived long ago, so we

          7  understand very clearly what those support

          8  environments are.

          9                 I talked about connectivity

         10  infrastructure, but these pieces of security require

         11  the same type of infrastructure management and

         12  security that we see in all of our other enterprise

         13  systems.

         14                 If we look at the challenges facing

         15  agency IT departments and CIO's, the need to support

         16  both small and large implementations, trying to

         17  maintain the right direction for the governmental

         18  workers, the multitude of technology options that

         19  are available, not only today when I am putting out

         20  my RFP or making my decision, but what happens in

         21  six months or a year or two years when my mobile

         22  employees come into the office and say, look at this

         23  new gadget I got.  Why does not X work with Y?  And

         24  these are significant ongoing challenges, especially

         25  in the mobile computing environment, as cell phone
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          2  technologies change every six months, as well as

          3  PDA's, et cetera.

          4                 So, proper planning and requirements

          5  gathering is not a challenge, but certainly it is

          6  something that needs to be addressed to avoid the

          7  risks and costs of a failed implementation.

          8                 And then lastly, we typically see a

          9  lot of time spent on what it is I am trying to do

         10  with this, the data, the data integration

         11  considerations, and the reporting requirements.  And

         12  really here, the key thing is trying to determine,

         13  is there a solution that addresses the needs of my

         14  organization that I do not have to custom build?

         15  Minimizing custom build is something that increases

         16  your supportability over time.

         17                 We look at some examples of mobile

         18  computing.  One that has gotten a lot of play

         19  recently is fuel expense reductions. If you have

         20  anybody who is driving, and they are driving for the

         21  purpose of getting to a spot where they can use a

         22  computer, like an office, and particularly if they

         23  are field workers and meant to be in the field, then

         24  there is today, with the cost of gasoline, a

         25  significant expense just associated with the fact
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          2  that they have to come back to the office to drop

          3  data.  If they can do that remotely, whether from

          4  over the air in real time or even if they are

          5  securely connecting from the home office at the end

          6  of a shift, this is going to significantly reduce

          7  fuel expenses.

          8                 Typically, when we look at mobile

          9  enabling and agency or their workforce, we are

         10  looking at an opportunity to improve the existing

         11  work flow, because of how data is being collected

         12  and manipulated and digitized right at the time of

         13  entry. And there is actually usually quite a big

         14  benefit from the efficiencies that we can drive in

         15  the whole process associated with this.

         16                 I mentioned earlier that one of the

         17  key beneficiaries of mobile computing solutions, is

         18  disaster recovery. And you do not have to spend a

         19  lot of money to make sure that a mobile computing

         20  infrastructure also supports disaster recovery

         21  initiatives.

         22                 We talked about remote workers, as

         23  well.  This is, I think, something that over time

         24  will happen, and you know certainly there is a

         25  certain amount of time required to spend in phase
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          2  time with others.  But as our technologies improve,

          3  enabling virtual phase time, whether it is through

          4  instant messaging, like most people are probably

          5  very comfortable with today, or video messaging or

          6  other types of virtual computing infrastructures

          7  that basically, the concept of having to be in a

          8  single place for a long period of time with others,

          9  decreases.  And so that enabling the mobile

         10  workforce over time, will certainly enable some of

         11  the cost efficiency associated with that, that Larry

         12  mentioned.

         13                 Any type of remote sensor or remote

         14  center automation that you want to think about,

         15  whether it is meter reading or anything, this same

         16  type of infrastructure needs to be in place.  All of

         17  the secure kind connectivity back into your agency

         18  in order to collect this data from the field,

         19  whether or not there happens to be a mobile worker

         20  at the other end providing the data.  The same type

         21  of infrastructure needs to be there for remote

         22  sensors.

         23                 Things that we have seen that are

         24  sort of success, engages with the different agencies

         25  we have worked with, certainly if you have got nine
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          2  different mobile field forces within your agency,

          3  you do not want to have nine different systems.  You

          4  ideally want to have a single system and a single

          5  infrastructure to support not just the

          6  infrastructure, but also the forms automation and

          7  the work flow processes associated with getting the

          8  data into the system and managing it through the

          9  system.  And that goes along with creating the

         10  agency- wide architecture, as well.

         11                 Planning for anything that might be

         12  related to what you are currently looking at,

         13  looking at in the future, so if you are going to do

         14  one of the nine as a test, certainly can take into

         15  consideration what flexibility would need to be

         16  there for the nine different systems, versus just

         17  dealing with the one.

         18                 I mentioned business processes.  Last

         19  thing, and I think you heard this from probably all

         20  of the speakers today, is that I am planning an

         21  approach with short term milestones is going to

         22  enable you to gauge your success and correct course

         23  if necessary, along the way, rather than trying to

         24  do a huge project implementation that is going to

         25  take two years to get to something that is actually
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          2  deliverable.

          3                 The Department of Health is a

          4  solution that is actually one of our partners.

          5  Global Bay is actually a forms automation solution

          6  where they have converted twelve paper forms into

          7  two different types of electronic forms.  They are

          8  doing printing on site.  This is the type of

          9  inspection you do when you go out to make sure that

         10  the facility is okay.  The typical types of benefits

         11  you see here, quicker response time, identification

         12  of issues, reporting of the issue, not just

         13  identification, because the issue is identified on

         14  paper, in the past.  But the reporting of that issue

         15  is expedited through a mobile computing environment,

         16                 While on site, being able to have the

         17  history of the issues, through a mobile computing

         18  environment without having to carry a whole file

         19  folder full of information, and of course the

         20  reduced errors in manual keying that you will see

         21  associated with this.

         22                 And with that, I will take questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 We have been honored to be joined by
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          2  Council Member Letitia James from Brooklyn, who has

          3  been a very faithful member of this committee, and I

          4  thank you very much.

          5                 A couple of questions, first of all,

          6  starting with Larry Knafo, since you have such

          7  experience in City, and now private sector, same

          8  question that I asked Ron Bergmann.  How do you

          9  think we can go about doing some of the evaluation

         10  of productivity and whether we are saving, not just

         11  money, but lives, in terms of using this technology?

         12                 MR. KNAFO: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It is a hard

         14  question and hard to answer, but it does not give me

         15   -- we need some kind of measurement.

         16                 MR. KNAFO: Well, I think there are

         17  areas where measuring productivity gains are easy.

         18  Certainly the police example of the parking tickets,

         19  you can think about all kinds of productivity gains.

         20    If they are scanning the bar code and writing the

         21  ticket faster, that is leading to more tickets and

         22  that is an increase in productivity.  If you then

         23  move to a spot where today those agents come out of

         24  central locations, they go there first and then they

         25  go do their rounds and then they go back at the end
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          2  of the day, and upload their parking tickets.  Well,

          3  if you take that the next step and you move to a

          4  wireless solution where maybe they do not have to

          5  turn out of a central office where the device knows

          6  that their first ticket is written at 9:00, which is

          7  right when their shift starts, you have them now out

          8  on the street and extra half an hour at the

          9  beginning of the shift, and an extra half an hour at

         10  the end of the shift.  Those are clear productivity

         11  gains.              I think when you look at remote

         12  workers, it gets a little more difficult, and I

         13  think that is where, when we are in government, we

         14  tend to get nervous about, I do not want to let my

         15  employee work from home.  Well, I think there, there

         16  are also areas where you can measure productivity.

         17  So, a call center, for instance, is a great example

         18  of where you can monitor remote agents.

         19                 Jet Blue in Utah, their call center,

         20  when you call Jet Blue Airlines, you are getting

         21  people working at home.  They are spread out across

         22  the State of Utah, they are home workers and they

         23  are answering phone calls for the company.  They are

         24  measured very carefully.  The system knows when they

         25  log on, it knows how many calls they are taking, how
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          2  long the calls are taking, how long they are in wrap

          3  up mode, when they are not answering calls.  So,

          4  there are clear productivity measures.  It gets a

          5  little more difficult when you move up to the

          6  management level, but at that point, you have to

          7  hope that your managers are doing their job.

          8                 So, I think there are real ways to

          9  measure productivity.  And then once you measure the

         10  productivity, you have to decide, what do you do

         11  with productivity.  So, I do not think this is about

         12  eliminating positions.  I think it is about

         13  rethinking how you use positions and focusing on

         14  bigger priorities.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Along those

         16  lines, about training.  In other words, how,

         17  obviously in the private sector you have to do a lot

         18  of training also.  For Cisco or IBM to be mobile, or

         19  mobile, depending on how you pronounce it, but the

         20  question is, how do you think -- there is a lot of

         21  turnover and it is an older workforce in City

         22  government.

         23                 MR. KNAFO: And I think you are going

         24  to see a lot more turn over in the next five or ten

         25  years.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Right.  So, how

          3  do you think the training should be applied?  And

          4  how much, obviously you are now in the private

          5  sector, but how much should be done by the private?

          6  Do you think there is enough being done on the

          7  government side?  I think the training is incredibly

          8  important and when I talk to people, I think there

          9  can never be enough of it.

         10                 MR. KNAFO: That is right.  There can

         11  never be enough training.  And I think you have to

         12  look at the training for this technology exactly the

         13  same way as you look for training on anything else

         14  that these employees do in their daily job.  So,

         15  when you bring in new employees and you train them

         16  on how to do their job, and what tools they have

         17  available, and whether that means how they fill out

         18  a paper form, or how they fill out an electronic

         19  form, you still have to make sure that you provide

         20  the right training, and whether it is the City

         21  agency providing the training, or them out sourcing

         22  that training to a system integrator, that is up to

         23  the individual need.

         24                 I will give you the example.  When I

         25  first worked for EMS on my first day on the job,
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          2  somebody sat down with me and spent half an hour,

          3  very informally, showing me how to use that mobile

          4  data computer in the ambulance.  That was my

          5  training. Since then, I think they have formalized

          6  that training into part of the academy, when you

          7  come into EMS.  So, you need to make sure the

          8  training is formalized and that it is ongoing, and

          9  as you make changes, and this is the most difficult

         10  part, you have to think about how to roll out that

         11  training.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: We did the sexual

         13  harassment training on line, and actually I think it

         14  was not successful.  And I say that thinking about

         15  it in retrospect.  So, how much training can be done

         16  on line and how much needs to be person to person?

         17  Obviously, we are all talking about distance

         18  learning et cetera.

         19                 MR. KNAFO: Yes.  Well, I think also

         20  you know, you have to think about, are there areas

         21  where you do not have to make changes to the process

         22  because of the technology?  And I think the best

         23  example, if you look at how we implemented when I

         24  was with the City, the AVL in the ambulances of EMS.

         25                 Forget about the ambulance side for a
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          2  minute. Let us look at the dispatcher side, because

          3  they are where the impact is happening.  By totally

          4  integrating the signal from the ambulances, telling

          5  the dispatcher where the ambulance is, into the CDS

          6  system, the computer dispatch system, the dispatcher

          7  looks at a line of recommended units for any call,

          8  and that today looks no different than it did prior

          9  to AVL.

         10                 What has happened, though, is that

         11  the system is smarter.  So, that first unit that it

         12  says dispatch this unit to this call, that is the

         13  closest unit.  And the dispatcher actually does not

         14  have to know anything.  So, in that case, we are

         15  able to eliminate the need for training, and just

         16  implement the technology quickly.  And it has great

         17  results, because it did not require any change to

         18  how they did their job.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Interesting, all

         20  right.

         21                 In terms of privacy, there are so

         22  many more issues now.  We think about privacy and

         23  security in terms of first responders.  But now

         24  nothing could be worse than a health report, or a

         25  report about any kind of a domestic violence dispute
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          2  being available to the public.  I cannot imagine

          3  anything worse.  So, how do you -- do you think that

          4  government, I mean in general, is able to protect

          5  us?  This is a very big challenge.

          6                 MR. KNAFO: I think --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: How should we be

          8  addressing the problem?

          9                 MR. KNAFO: I think honestly, there is

         10  more security that is capable.  And capable you have

         11  to put it in place, and you have to protect it.

         12  There is more security capable with technology, than

         13  without technology.  When we looked at projects in

         14  the past, related domestic violence --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: What about the VA

         16  Hospital? When all of the sudden all of the --

         17                 MR. KNAFO: Well, that is a great

         18  example of where --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Veterans

         20  apparently, I do not quite understand.  Laptop was

         21  stolen, apparently and with it, the records.

         22                 MR. KNAFO: That is a great example of

         23  where security was not in place, and you have to

         24  make sure the security is in place.  But, if you

         25  look at where you have domestic violence centers,
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          2  where faxes are coming in with people's personal

          3  information, and it is on a general fax machine, how

          4  is that anymore secure than a data base that I can

          5  secure and know who logged in to it?

          6                 So, you have to say, look, in any

          7  case, whether it is paper or digital, there have to

          8  be security procedures that you put in place.  They

          9  have to be followed.  But I think that computer

         10  security will offer you more security, more actual

         11  security, if you follow the rules and you implement

         12  the rules and you train people on the rules.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         14                 We have been joined by Council Member

         15  Oliver Koppell from the Bronx.

         16                 Did you want to add something to --

         17                 MR. KNAFO: I was just going to say

         18  that I think the failure like in the VA, for

         19  example, the failure of secure systems, is typically

         20  because of shortcuts taken in the infrastructure.

         21  Because of the lack of knowledge or the lack of

         22  personnel to actually support the systems properly.

         23                 If you look at, and I am

         24  flabbergasted by this, but if you look at desktop

         25  security and you look at laptop security in some
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          2  environments, in fact, if you look at wireless

          3  security, people choose not to implement, because it

          4  makes support easier. And so, what they are not

          5  doing to ease their support burden, will ultimately

          6  come back and bite them from a security perspective.

          7                 And this goes to network logons on

          8  typical desktop computers, to appropriate security

          9  and encryption on laptops, and you can take that

         10  right across to wireless environments, as well.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And of course

         12  redundancy is the other issue here, which feeds into

         13  the same question.  So, what kind of redundancy

         14  plans do you think work best, and obviously, that is

         15  also the question of error rates, are a part of

         16  that, too? Two separate questions, but redundancy is

         17  huge.  Do you feel like, you know, it is a big

         18  challenge for government?

         19                 MR. KNAFO: I think data redundancy

         20  and back end data warehousing is a challenge for not

         21  just government, but for everyone.  And you have to

         22  look carefully at what is the goal of redundancy in

         23  your systems.  What does it protect you from?  How

         24  long does it protect you?  And the key question is,

         25  what does it protect you from?  If you look at the
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          2  financial commercial companies in Downtown New York,

          3  they look at redundance data systems as meaning, I

          4  need to have a backup data center outside of a 50

          5  mile radius of New York City in order to be able to

          6  survive another significant amount, like we recently

          7  had.

          8                 So, redundancy comes at a cost, and

          9  it is also an important consideration of how long,

         10  and at what level of redundancy.  Mobile systems and

         11  remote computing systems do provide you with a level

         12  of secure access into an environment, and in some

         13  cases, a level of local redundancy to the user.  But

         14  the big question, I think of redundant systems comes

         15  on the back end.  And in terms of how you provide

         16  the appropriate level of support for dealing with

         17  situations that require redundancy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         19                 Now you talked about Corpus Christie,

         20  Texas and the sensors on water and gas meters.  Now,

         21  Con Ed, I think, has that here, I do not know.  In

         22  other words, when they always tell us we can read

         23  our own meters and call it in.  Is that the same

         24  thing that is being done in Corpus Christie?  Or is

         25  that different?
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          2                 MR. KNAFO: I am actually not familiar

          3  with what Con Ed has here.  The Corpus Christie was

          4  interesting.  I think the idea out there was spawned

          5  when a worker was attacked by a dog and --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: That happens

          7  here, too.

          8                 MR. KNAFO: It happens all the time

          9  and they said, you know what?  Why do we have to

         10  have people going around reading meters?  So, they

         11  put wireless sensors on the meters and those

         12  wireless sensors essentially send signals at

         13  periodic basis back to their Con Ed.  And it gives

         14  how much usage, what the billing should be.  It lets

         15  them know if there is an unusual amount of usage

         16  which would indicate a leak, and then billing is

         17  done like that.  So, there are actually three levels

         18  that you can have.  The level where somebody goes

         19  out and reads the meter, you can have a second level

         20  where some wireless, where somebody can just drive

         21  by and pick up a wireless reading from the moving

         22  car, or you can have this level that Corpus Christie

         23  has, where they actually pro- actively send readings

         24  back.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: We should ask Con
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          2  Ed what they are doing, and if in fact, it was less

          3  expensive to do wireless, and DEP, then maybe we

          4  would pay less money for our rates.  That would be

          5  very good.

          6                 The other question I have is, just in

          7  terms of this notion of a City- wide network of some

          8  kind.  We talked about some of these other cities.

          9  Would any of this network discussion enable field

         10  workers and the agencies to be more, to connect more

         11  readily, to help City government to do so?  It is

         12  obviously a question that needs more discussion.

         13                 MR. KNAFO: You are talking about the

         14  non- it is the public internet access.  Sure.  I

         15  think --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It is quite

         17  controversial in our City.

         18                 MR. KNAFO: It is very controversial

         19  in I think, across the country.  And I think a lot

         20  of cities and municipalities are trying to figure

         21  out if there really is a payback model for them.  I

         22  think it was just announced today that Sacramento,

         23  the company that is working with Sacramento has

         24  pulled back their work, because they are not sure if

         25  it is financially feasible.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Do you know

          3  Mancini must have loved that scenario.  Go ahead.

          4                 MR. KNAFO: So, I think the answer is

          5  that you are going to have to rely no matter what,

          6  on a lot of different networks.  So, in New York

          7  City, you have a private network being put into

          8  place for emergency responders.  You have got lots

          9  of wireless hot spots around the City.  You have got

         10  multiple providers that provide commercial services.

         11  Verizon has a commercial service, EDDO, Singular has

         12  a commercial service in New York.  And you have to

         13  think about a multi layered approach and think that

         14  today there are non critical, not police, not fire,

         15  applications, that you can easily put out there,

         16  based on those commercial services.  Or even based

         17  on wireless hot spots that are around.

         18                 As you get up the ladder towards the

         19  more critical applications, you want to have control

         20  of the network and make sure that it is up all the

         21  time.  Your police and fire, you certainly do not

         22  want to rely on Starbucks on the corner.  So, you

         23  have to look at using all these networks and

         24  thinking maybe there is a police precinct where you

         25  want to put a wireless hot spot outside the
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          2  precinct, so that you can upload records to a car.

          3  There are all kinds of approaches that you can take

          4  here.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

          6                 I want to thank you.  Any other

          7  questions?  No.

          8                 Thank you both very much for your

          9  extremely helpful testimony, and I am sure we will

         10  continue to be in touch.  Thank you so much.

         11                 The next and final panel is Sean

         12  Morgan, Regional Account Manager of Accela, Inc.,

         13  Angela Smith, Deputy Director Department of Permits

         14  and Inspections, Washington County, Maryland and

         15  Kaisa (phonetic) Kleinman, Director of the Non-

         16  profit Help Desk at JCC of Greater Coney Island.

         17                 Good morning.  Who would like to

         18  start?  Sean Morgan, do you want to start?

         19                 MR. MORGAN: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  Thank you

         21  for joining us.

         22                 MR. MORGAN: Good morning and thank

         23  you, Council Person Brewer, Council Person James and

         24  Councilman Koppell.

         25                 My name is Sean Morgan.  I am the
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          2  Regional Account Manager for the Northeast for

          3  Accela, Inc.  And I have been joined today with our

          4  customer, Angela Smith, who is the Deputy Director,

          5  the Department of Permits and Inspections at

          6  Washington County, Maryland.

          7                 So, we are here today to discuss and

          8  try to answer the question of why mobile government?

          9    And the topics of discussion today will be around

         10  expediting time needed in gaining approvals and this

         11  is really revolving around land management, reducing

         12  cost structure for government agencies, and

         13  maximizing revenues and resources, as well, and then

         14  increasing citizen satisfaction.

         15                 I thought it was -- is there any way

         16  to make sure --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Yes, we can work

         18  with you.  Why do you not keep talking and then we

         19  will figure out --

         20                 MR. MORGAN: Sure.  And then just

         21  briefly about -- you are great, thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you,

         23  Brooklyn.

         24                 Yea, Brooklyn.  Go ahead.

         25                 MR. MORGAN: I have my IT person right
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          2  here with me. Just briefly about Accela.  We are the

          3  leading provider of government automation solutions,

          4  focusing primarily on government, and no private

          5  sector sales.  We have been in the business for over

          6  25 years.  We have got over 500 customers installed

          7  coast to coast and today we are going to focus with

          8  a success story at Washington County, Maryland on

          9  our Accela wireless solution.

         10                 So, there are currently about 60

         11  agencies coast to coast, a little over 2,000 users

         12  using this system.  And it is the ability to take

         13  the point, take inspections, for instance, into the

         14  field, result them wirelessly, or in a store and

         15  forward mode.

         16                 And here is just a snapshot of from

         17  coast to coast, of some of the installations that we

         18  have got.  A couple of high profile ones that were

         19  discussed earlier, include the City of Cleveland, of

         20  course Washington County, Maryland, but also the

         21  City of New Orleans.  And we had helped with the

         22  damage assessment after Katrina with FEMA and the

         23  inspectors there in New Orleans.

         24                 And what I will do now is turn it

         25  over and we will focus now on Washington County,
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          2  Maryland and Angela Smith.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Ms. Smith, thank

          4  you for joining us here today.

          5                 MS. SMITH: Thank you.  Thank you for

          6  the opportunity to be able to share our

          7  implementation success with New York City. The

          8  implementation of mobile solutions has totally

          9  transformed, not only our Department, but County

         10  Government and the community, as well.  And we find

         11  ourselves no longer holding on to the processes that

         12  used to work in the past, but pushing forward to

         13  look for new worlds to deliver customer service to

         14  our customers.

         15                 We are located about 65 miles west of

         16  Baltimore and Washington D.C.  We have a population

         17  of about 142,000 people.  We cover about 500 square

         18  miles of property and we currently have about eleven

         19  inspectors.  So, you can see we are located at a

         20  prime target for things that happen in Baltimore and

         21  D.C., And the terrain is a challenge in which we

         22  faced one of the biggest obstacles because of the

         23  valleys and the hills and the flat plains.

         24                 So, there were many different

         25  inefficiencies that we found.  Currently we go to
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          2  papers, and that is how our inspectors used, you can

          3  forward to the next slide and we will cover the

          4  inefficiencies of our process.  Our inspectors used

          5  to carry papers in the field with them, and that is

          6  how they conducted their inspections, was through

          7  papers.  And you can imagine trying to do a job, and

          8  then hand all these clerical responsibilities can be

          9  overwhelming.  But we found inconsistent

         10  inspections.  Depending on what inspector wrote it

         11  at your site, depended on a lot of times, what type

         12  of inspection you were going to be receiving.

         13  Incomplete documentation, they would go in the

         14  field, they would complete an inspection, they would

         15  jot down some information, they would go back into

         16  the next day and then they would re- enter that

         17  information into the system.  A lot of times

         18  forgetting a lot of the important information that

         19  needed to be transferred.  So, there was duplication

         20  of work.  They were doing it in the field, coming

         21  back the next day and doing it in the office, as

         22  well.  So, it amounted to a lot of excessive

         23  clerical work.  And as a result of that, we found

         24  ourselves being back logged in inspections and

         25  therefore provided insufficient staffing.
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          2                 What was the solution?  We looked all

          3  around us. What was the best thing for Washington

          4  County government?  We found the solution was

          5  deploying a mobile government application into the

          6  field.  The inspectors, their vehicles have been set

          7  up so that they actually have Tough notebooks, that

          8  is what they use, Toughbooks in their vehicles with

          9  printers right there.  So, we have literally taken

         10  and set up a mobile office right in their trucks,

         11  where they can work directly right from there,

         12  transforming the way that inspectors did business

         13  from previous.

         14                 Field capabilities, what does this

         15  enable the inspectors to do right at the site?  We

         16  hear a lot about what this software can do, and

         17  mobile government is wonderful.  But when the rubber

         18  meets the road, what does it really do?  What type

         19  of efficiencies are corrected?  And consistencies,

         20  what are the changes?  The capabilities we found, is

         21  the inspectors can actually update, schedule, re-

         22  schedule, cancel and they can even transfer

         23  inspections.  And that is awesome.  When you are at

         24  a site and you are trying to conduct business and

         25  maybe an inspection is not ready, but it is going to
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          2  be ready tomorrow or the next day, the inspectors

          3  then can re- schedule that.  They can transfer an

          4  inspection, if it is at the end of the day and they

          5  find themselves behind.  Because in reality, a lot

          6  of times you arrive on a site, there are issues and

          7  things that you have to deal with that sometimes put

          8  you behind.  All they have to do is transfer the

          9  inspection, and another inspector can pick up and

         10  carry on business, as needed.

         11                 Apartments can be initialized in the

         12  field.  In the construction field you find what is

         13  applied for, and what is built, a lot of times are

         14  two different things.  So when the inspector gets

         15  into the field, yes, yes.  So, what we have found,

         16  the software system enables you, the inspectors, to

         17  initialize permits right in the field.  Say they are

         18  building a house and they were not going to

         19  initially finish the basement, now they are.  The

         20  plans they have been provided, had the finished

         21  basement in there. The inspector now can go ahead

         22  and set up that permit, roll with the inspections,

         23  moving forward, saving our customers money and time.

         24

         25                 These can be collected, we do not
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          2  take advantage of that feature right now, but that

          3  is available in the software system.  You can

          4  collect fees from licenses, from permits, from

          5  reinspection fees, right there at the spot.

          6  Pictures are being transmitted and this is a very,

          7  very big benefit to Washington County, where when

          8  the inspection is there, a lot of times there are

          9  interpretations or maybe a decision needs to be made

         10  by the code official.  Previously the code official

         11  would get in the vehicle, you would drive out to the

         12  site, he would see what was going in and then he

         13  would make a determination.

         14                 Just last week we received a

         15  telephone call, two o'clock in the morning, calling

         16  one of our building inspectors out to a fire from an

         17  apartment complex.  He arrived out at the site to

         18  find a lot of damage had been done.  Through the

         19  mobile solutions that he was using, he was able to

         20  take lots of pictures.  It just so happens the

         21  property owner was not from Washington County,

         22  Maryland, but was located in Texas.  He took

         23  pictures, he handled the situation at the time, he

         24  was able to condemn the building at that point in

         25  time.  He emailed the property owner pictures of
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          2  what had happened, along with the report of what he

          3  found there.  So, when the property owner woke up

          4  the next morning, all that information was right

          5  there.  Even though he was hundreds of miles away,

          6  he was able to pick up and move forward, as if he

          7  were right there at the scene, at that particular

          8  time.

          9                 Queries can be run, you roll it on a

         10  construction site, you want to know what permits

         11  have been applied for to this site, which ones have

         12  not.  What is the history?  Is there a flood plan in

         13  this property?  What is the zoning?  Queries can be

         14  run because the data base makes sure that even

         15  though the inspectors are out of the office, they

         16  are never out of in touch with the office.  And that

         17  is very important.

         18                 Field correction notices can be

         19  issued right from the site.  When they arrive there,

         20  also letters are left.  We also do day care

         21  inspections.  Once we do an inspection, we then

         22  notify the day care person letting them know your

         23  inspection has been passed, you can move forward.

         24                 Lots of documents can be issued right

         25  there at the site.  Handling issues at the moment
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          2  has saved Washington County lots and lots of time.

          3  Emails can be processed as I eluded to previously.

          4  Keeping communication open and in real time, is

          5  critical.

          6                 What are the benefits?  It has

          7  tremendously increased efficiency within our

          8  Department.  It minimizes the inspection time.  From

          9  the time the inspector rolls on the site until he

         10  leaves, that inspection is now finished.  There is

         11  no more coming back into the office, picking up that

         12  inspection and doing duplication of work.  The

         13  quality of the inspection, that is a big weakness in

         14  Washington County.  We have implemented guide

         15  sheets, which is also part of the software.  So,

         16  there are no surprises to the contractors and no

         17  surprises to the property owners.  Depending on what

         18  inspector comes to the site, a lot of times

         19  depending on what kind of inspection would you

         20  receive?

         21                 Now we have implemented guide sheets.

         22    All of our inspectors are being trained.  This is

         23  what we look for when we roll on the site.  We also

         24  document this information.  It is made part of our

         25  file and it has tremendously increased the quality
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          2  of inspection we do.  It enables our no more

          3  inspections to be completed on a daily basis.  By

          4  cutting out the duplication of work and reducing the

          5  clerical work, now enables our inspectors to do

          6  exactly what we hired them to do, quality

          7  inspections.  It provides quicker inspection

          8  results.  When the inspection is completed, the data

          9  is right there for the customers to be able to pick

         10  up and find out the results.  It allows the

         11  flexibility of schedules and this is also another

         12  important one.

         13                 Previously, you could only do the

         14  inspections that you went out of the office with.

         15  Now with the flexibility of schedules, you come

         16  into, in Washington County, we have a lot of

         17  subdivision which are booming as people from D.C.

         18  and Rockville, now are re- locating to one of the

         19  fastest growing counties in the nation.  And we have

         20  found that by having flexibility of schedules, if we

         21  pull into a sub division and there are two town

         22  house buildings that have been scheduled for

         23  inspection that day, but the contractor has two more

         24  that are done, they can now put all the inspections

         25  into the computer system and roll with the
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          2  inspections on the whole thing.  That is a

          3  tremendous convenience to the customer.  Time is

          4  money for them.

          5                 It also projects a different image

          6  for County Government.  We are not there to work

          7  against you, we are there to work with you and for

          8  you, and help you complete the projects that you

          9  need to have completed.

         10                 It also allows permit processing in

         11  the field, provides a greater service to the

         12  customer.  And that is ultimately what we find the

         13  citizens of Washington County want, a greater

         14  service.  Working smarter, providing services we

         15  could never provide before, at the moment in which

         16  they are needed.  Not having to wait for an

         17  automated phone system to have a return phone call

         18  two or three days later.  Having the information

         19  they need at that moment.

         20                 It also eliminates excessive phone

         21  calls and extra trips.  We have cut out the middle

         22  man.  No longer does a field personnel now have to

         23  call into the office to find information. They have

         24  it right there available when they need it.  It

         25  enables quick administrative decisions, creates team
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          2  work and unity.

          3                 I have been in the Department for 17

          4  years and we have tried to build a strong team.  And

          5  mobile solutions is what brought that team together.

          6    And it is ironic, because what we found was, we

          7  found inspectors who were trying to use a software

          8  system and a Tough Book and they were helping one

          9  another.  They were not letting one another try to

         10  decide how to figure this out, but lending a helping

         11  hand.  No longer am I inspecting my territory and

         12  you inspecting your territory, but now through the

         13  flexibility of schedules and downloading of multiple

         14  calendars, it is not my land and your land, but it

         15  is our land.  So, we have found inspectors who never

         16  worked together.  Now that they have the tools

         17  there, it has encouraged and created the environment

         18  where team work can nurture and grow, and boost

         19  employee moral.  And I cannot say enough about that.

         20    Nothing more frustrating than to give someone a

         21  job and not give them the tools to be able to do it.

         22    It is like we say to our contractor, I would like

         23  a 4,000 square foot house built, here is a hammer

         24  and nails, go at it.  Frustrating, you know.  You

         25  give them the resources, unlimited resources and say
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          2  build my home.  We found that we have inspectors now

          3  which take pride in the work that they do.  They

          4  have commitment and dedication because not only are

          5  they given a job, but they have been given the

          6  adequate tools to be able to do the job that is

          7  needed.

          8                 With every implementation, there are

          9  challenges and there are road blocks.  I am not here

         10  to tell you it is a piece of cake, it is cherry pie.

         11    It is not.  We are all going to encounter those.

         12  That is something else I am going to cover today.

         13  Support is one of the most important things.

         14  Support from the Council, support from your software

         15  provider, support form your managers of whatever

         16  Department or multiple Departments that are doing

         17  it. Communication is very, very important.

         18                 Our County Commissioner asked the

         19  question, should we do this?  Can we afford to do

         20  this?  And my question to them was, how can we not

         21  afford to do it?  We have responsibility and

         22  obligations to our internal customers, giving them

         23  the tools that they need to do a job that they are

         24  going to be proud of.  To our external customers, we

         25  owe them the responsibility and the commitment of
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          2  providing the best service.  A service that

          3  Washington County can be proud of, New York City can

          4  be proud of.

          5                 Acceptance by the inspectors, very,

          6  very important. We have all been told to do a job by

          7  someone who did not even have a clue in what we were

          8  doing, but they wanted us to make it work. We made

          9  the inspectors part of the project from the very

         10  beginning asking them, what are the challenges you

         11  face in the field?  What do you need to do a better

         12  job?  By including them from the very beginning,

         13  they embraced the implementation and they embraced

         14  the change.

         15                 Training and building self confidence

         16  is very, very important.  Success is only as great

         17  as the training that is being provided to your

         18  customers.  That is what we found.  We did not only

         19  do overall general training with them, but we, as

         20  well, did individualized training to those that,

         21  because we have inspectors that have worked in the

         22  Department for many years, those who are just coming

         23  on board, you also will have a wide range of users.

         24  Some users who have used computers, you know, two

         25  days, two years, twenty years.  Customizing the
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          2  training so that the inspectors and your field

          3  personnel can do their job with confidence, is very

          4  important.

          5                 Connectivity issues related to the

          6  geographical terrain was another challenge that we

          7  faced and our currently even working through at the

          8  present time.  But we are very, very happy with the

          9  success which we have received at this point.

         10                 In conclusion, the results that we

         11  have received from mobile solutions has been

         12  outstanding.  Clerical time has been reduced by at

         13  least one hour a day to an hour and a half per

         14  inspector.  That is about sixteen hours in a day

         15  productivity that has enabled our inspectors to be

         16  able to do.  Inspection quality has increased.

         17  Inconsistent inspections no longer exist, but we all

         18  are doing the same type of job with a great quality

         19  of inspection.

         20                 More inspections are being completed

         21  daily, meeting the needs of a growing community.  As

         22  our community grows, we must grow along with it.

         23  Improved citizen satisfaction. County government now

         24  is proud of the service that we offer.  The

         25  community now feels that they have a voice in what
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          2  is going on.  We validate their concerns and have

          3  expanded our services to meet their needs.

          4                 Improved customer satisfaction,

          5  excellent service has improved, efficient processes

          6  are now in place, faster result which is all

          7  equalling money saved.  One thing for certainty, is

          8  change.  Learning and preparing to be proactive and

          9  not reactive, is critical.  The weather, the economy

         10  and natural disasters are all things we have no

         11  control over.  However, we do have control over how

         12  we will respond to them.  We must remember

         13  tomorrow's transformation begins with the decisions

         14  that we make today.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Thank you.  Ms. Kleinman?

         19                 You need to pull the mic. A little

         20  bit closer to you.

         21                 MS. KLEINMAN: Is that better?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Yes.

         23                 MS. KLEINMAN: I am from the Jewish

         24  Community Council of Coney Island.  I run the non-

         25  profit help desk as well as internal IT.
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          2                 I would like to address an issue that

          3  I was trying to stress at the end, at the beginning,

          4  which is the issue of data security.  You had

          5  mentioned earlier the theft of a laptop at the VA.

          6  And I am going to address it a little differently

          7  than I was intending to.  That theft is a massive

          8  disaster but it also is a perfect example of what

          9  not to do.  Just about every rule of computer

         10  security I would say, was violated in that disaster.

         11    I am addressing the issue in terms of government,

         12  not direct provision, but as it is provided through

         13  the non profit sector.  And I think there are

         14  certain things that the government can do to prevent

         15  that kind of thing from happening, both in the

         16  government sector and in the non profit sector that

         17  it funds.

         18                 There are a couple of things.

         19  Firstly, there is simply the regulations that are

         20  out there.  Many, many organizations, businesses and

         21  non profits, do not do things because they are not

         22  required to.  You know, it is the least effort that

         23  you can make and still be in compliance with all the

         24  rules and regulations, is often what is going to

         25  happen.
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          2                 Beyond that, in the non profit

          3  sector, I think that there are several things that

          4  the government can do that can make a tremendous

          5  difference.  Firstly, one thing that I see a lot of

          6  is that many organizations do not have adequate data

          7  security in place because they do not have the

          8  funding, and they do not have the encouragement from

          9  the City agencies that fund them.  And if City

         10  agencies were more proactive, I see now some City

         11  agencies are actually beginning to do their audits,

         12  but even those agencies are not asking about

         13  security.  Security is simply not on the radar

         14  screen.  And if you want to spend money on this

         15  stuff, then you are half the time dealing with, you

         16  have to beg and plead and explain sixteen times

         17  over, and if you are lucky, they will let you waste

         18   "the money", but it is not a waste.  Government

         19  agencies need to actively, not just allow it, but

         20  actively promote and fund the measures that are

         21  necessary, and it is not just technology, it is

         22  rules, it is understanding the date, et cetera.

         23                 Another issue that I see a lot of is

         24  many City agencies require the collection of data

         25  that really is not necessary, but puts people at
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          2  risk.  For instance, many City agencies require

          3  income information for programs that are not tested.

          4  Is this really necessary?  And in some cases it is

          5  because they have got to report back to the Feds.

          6  Who want to have this information, et cetera.

          7                 But in some cases it is really not

          8  necessary. Sometimes we collect social security

          9  numbers and really, is it necessarily necessary?

         10  And this is, you know, being recently recognized as

         11  best practices do not collect data that you do not

         12  need.  But City agencies need to, and I know that

         13  some City agencies are beginning to do this, I am

         14  not trying to knock everybody, but I think it needs

         15  to become a formal policy and something that is done

         16  on an ongoing basis, that every six months, every

         17  year, they look at every form and every regulation

         18  and every question that gets asked and say, do we

         19  really need this information?  Is it really useful?

         20  Two levels, the stuff that is needed we have got to

         21  require the stuff that is useful, will ask but is

         22  not required, and everything else goes out the

         23  window.  It is not necessary and it just puts people

         24  at risk.

         25                 So, I really feel that even without
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          2  the mobile technology, the mobile workforce issues,

          3  just make this far more important that I think this

          4  is something that needs to be very, very strongly

          5  addressed.

          6                 Back to the rest of what I wanted to

          7  say.  I would like to address the issues primarily

          8  as I said, as seen through the eyes of a non profit

          9  sector.  Now, start with where I am coming from on

         10  this.  I happen to, my job is at the Jewish

         11  Community Council is two fold.  For one thing I work

         12  with our internal IT, as well as advising our job

         13  development, our workforce and job development

         14  division on the skills and technology issues that

         15  relate to that.  I also run a non profit help desk

         16  which provides technology assistance to non profits

         17  throughout the City.  We help approximately 600

         18  very, very diverse organizations.  And many of them

         19  are involved in various aspects of workforce

         20  development.  So on the ground, I am seeing a lot of

         21  this stuff playing out.

         22                 In addition, my own job, no surprise,

         23  I think that anybody keeps me out of the office a

         24  lot, but at the same time, I need to be very

         25  available and people need to know where I am, what I
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          2  am doing, who I have spoken to, what I have been

          3  doing, I deal with clients, I deal with government

          4  agencies, et cetera.

          5                 So, what happens to me and to my

          6  employer in regards to me, is a very good mirror of

          7  what a lot of non profits and businesses are dealing

          8  with.  So, I have got a very personal appreciation

          9  of what is going on.

         10                 I think that besides the general

         11  issue of data security, there are three general

         12  technology pieces that every non profit has got to

         13  deal with.  The first most obvious one, is the cell

         14  phones.  That is really the only practical way to

         15  keep in contact with your mobile staff.  And things

         16  have improved vastly. I mean over the last two

         17  years, the availability of decent plans, not just

         18  less expensive, but more easily managed.  I mean, a

         19  year and a half ago, when I had to renegotiate our

         20  cell plan, I had much, much better choices, much

         21  more easily managed choices than I had two years

         22  before that.  So, this stuff is really improving

         23  immensely, but I must say, there is still a long way

         24  to go.  But I cannot complain too hard.  This is

         25  really an area where we have been improving a lot.
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          2                 The second aspect is the wireless

          3  access.  And I am going to say, you know, we are

          4  going somewhere with that, but there is a

          5  tremendous, tremendous amount of improvement that

          6  needs to be achieved.  There are, you know, yes, you

          7  have got the cell phones, you have got the cell

          8  phones and the PDA's, but you know what? They are

          9  very, very limited.  They are very slow.  And you

         10  can do emails, but really logging on to your system

         11  and doing, you know, I am not talking about what

         12  DoITT is doing with the City, because that they have

         13  got control and they can roll it as much speed as

         14  they need.  But for those of us that do not have

         15  access to the DoITT system, who have to go with the

         16  commercial carriers, the choices are very limited.

         17                 If you really need true mobile, truly

         18  mobile throughout the City, the cell phone is your

         19  best bet, but that is slow.  If you want to get

         20  something faster, there are only two vendors in the

         21  City, that provide anything close to broadband.

         22  There is Singular, which has a medium speed

         23  connection, which is really not useful if you want

         24  somebody to really enter these forms and like the

         25  kind of stuff that was just being described, it is
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          2  going to be very hard to do, unless the employer has

          3  been able to really fine tune its connection for

          4  slow connections.  But that is a very, very large

          5  investment and not always is it even practical. No

          6  matter how much tuning you do, there is only so much

          7  you can go with that.

          8                 And then there is Verizon, they have

          9  got their deal, but you know, that stuff is

         10  expensive.  Their pricing is $70 dollars a month per

         11  person, and if you want to do this practically, you

         12  need a laptop and the least expensive laptop that is

         13  going to be adequate, you are looking at 1200, you

         14  want a PC that is adequate for the job.  You are

         15  looking at two thousand dollars. The expenses here

         16  are really very -- they are big.  But you know, it

         17  would be easier to do some of this stuff if the

         18  speed, the speed issue is the real bottle neck.  So,

         19  that piece is really not anywhere close to where we

         20  needed to be for true mobility to be a factor.

         21                 And then we get to the third piece of

         22  this, is the back end systems, the systems and the

         23  gentleman from IBM eluded to this, the back end

         24  system, the infrastructure.  Now the good thing

         25  about that, is that you do not only have to use it
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          2  for the roving people, but if I can -- if I were

          3  going to three meetings today, at the end of the day

          4  if I had to go back into the office and enter all

          5  this stuff, that would be nuts.  I would have to

          6  kill a lot of time.  If I can go home and then some

          7  time in the evening upload all that information,

          8  that is already a benefit.  The ability to allow

          9  people to just access their systems from home or

         10  whatever it is, is a very, very big benefit.  It is

         11  a win all around for the employer, for the employee,

         12  environmentally speaking.  Whichever aspect you want

         13  to look at it, really as a plus.

         14                 The problem is, not the problem is,

         15  the key to making that work, is reliable affordable

         16  broadband.  And when I say reliable, I am not just

         17  talking about the reliability of the network per se,

         18  but effective reliability.  What happens when, at

         19  the end points, at the employer, at the employee?

         20                 And I am going, this is not in my

         21  written testimony, but I have got to share an

         22  experience that I am dealing with right now.  As I

         23  said, I am all over the place.  I do a tremendous

         24  amount of my work in the evenings uploading all this

         25  information.  I have been without internet access
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          2  since Wednesday.  Yes, exactly.  I have been without

          3  internet access since Wednesday, and I am not going

          4  to bore you with the details, but I have been

          5  dealing with two internet providers, both of whom

          6  have managed to mess me up big time, and I not only

          7  me, but the next door neighbor has lost her

          8  telephone connectivity because vendor number two

          9  screwed it up, basically.  And the story illustrates

         10  a lot of the kind of factors that can really affect

         11  us.  I am just going to share more or less what

         12  happened.

         13                 My internet access died on us and I

         14  am sorry, my internet access died and we tried to

         15  contact tech support.  I spoke to literally, four

         16  different people, spent over two hours on the phone

         17  with four different tech support people, horrible,

         18  terrible tech support.

         19                 Problem number one is effect of

         20  reliability because if you cannot get somebody to

         21  help you figure out what is wrong, you cannot get

         22  your access back up.  Beginning and end of story.

         23                 Problem number two is very, very

         24  inflexible policies.  I figured out what the matter

         25  was, and talking to the tech, he acknowledged that I
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          2  was probably right, but he could not fix the problem

          3  because the policy was that we have to try something

          4  else.  It required them to send me a disk in the

          5  mail, they cannot even FEDEX it to me, in the mail

          6  for me to try something else and meantime, it is

          7  going to be at least three days before they can get

          8  my internet access back up.  Yes, that is their

          9  policy, but it is insane.  The person on the ground

         10  should have the authority, when presented evidence,

         11  that this step is not necessary, should have the

         12  authority.  Meantime, we are dealing with this

         13  issue.

         14                 So, then I called the second internet

         15  access provider, because I was just disgusted.  My

         16  husband and I were just totally ticked off and we

         17  said, that is it, we are going to a provider, and I

         18  am not mentioning providers names because, it is

         19  not, I do not think it is unique to one provider.

         20  And the person on the phone was really nice,

         21  whatever, set us up and you are going to have

         22  Friday, someone is going to be in to set you up with

         23  internet access, wonderful and terrific.

         24                 Friday mid morning, I get a call from

         25  the neighbor. I need your help.  We do not have

                                                            109

          1  TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  telephone service since Wednesday night.  And when I

          3  called them up, I found out that they put in the

          4  wrong address and cut off our telephone service by

          5  mistake.  And I am like, what on earth are you

          6  talking about?  I was just like shocked, you know.

          7  She called tech support at her end, and they figured

          8  out that this is what happened.  That when they set

          9  up our internet access, they cut off their

         10  telephone, because they were using the same provider

         11  phone over IP type stuff, and they said they would

         12  get it fixed the next day, and it is Friday, and we

         13  still do not have a single telephone.  They have the

         14  one line, they do not have any telephone service in

         15  the house, so she is calling from work.  And this is

         16  just totally nuts.

         17                 So, we are trying to contact ISP

         18  number two, and the next thing you know, my husband

         19  who happens to be at home, I got the call at work,

         20  gets a call from the neighbor saying not only have

         21  they not fixed the problem, they still have the

         22  wrong address and the telephone people, the guys who

         23  are supposed to set up your internet connection, are

         24  at my house.  And they will not go to your house.

         25                 Another problem is incompetence.
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          2  Staff, I mean, I do not know how they managed to get

          3  this screwed up.  But again, inflexible policies.

          4  They would not come to our house, they would not

          5  call, this is their policy.  They go to the address

          6  they are given.  If it is not the right address or

          7  somebody is not home, that is it, they leave.  We

          8  are literally across the street.  No, does not make

          9  a difference.  This is what they have on the paper

         10  and that is what they are doing.

         11                 Like I said, we have been yelling and

         12  screaming at both vendors.  Meantime, I have got no

         13  internet access.  I am afraid to call my neighbor to

         14  find out if she has her phone service back.  But I

         15  do know, that when I called later Friday to talk to

         16  the ISP, they still had not gotten at that point,

         17  they still had not gotten phone service back up late

         18  Friday, and they still had the wrong address in

         19  place for us.

         20                 So, you are looking at a story, I

         21  mean, these are all non technological issues.  But

         22  they tremendously, tremendously impact real live

         23  effective reliability.  If this happens, it does not

         24  make a difference, you know.  And neither -- if you

         25  are going to ask either provider about the
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          2  reliability of their networks, this is not going to

          3  show up.  Because technically, the networks are not

          4  down.  But I do not have service.

          5                 So, that is, I think, a really good

          6  illustration of the kinds of problems.  Of course,

          7  it is only one anecdote, but it does illustrate the

          8  problem that can come up.  And I think something,

          9  again, maybe the City can kind of nudge companies

         10  toward this, is letting people have real effective,

         11  real information one effective reliability.  If

         12  there were like a site that I could go to and see

         13  not only how many outages they had, but how many

         14  customers over what span of time?  How long the

         15  outage lasted?  But also other types of complaints.

         16  You know, how many complaints, percentage- wise, I

         17  do not care numbers per se, but a percentage? You

         18  know, one out of ten customers had a problem, one

         19  out of a hundred customers.  And how long did it

         20  take to resolve?  Did they get it resolved in four

         21  hours, 48 hours or a week?  These are the kinds of

         22  things that any employer would I think, kill to

         23  know.  And in a small non profit when you are on a

         24  budget, you cannot afford to have redundant.  Large

         25  corporations is one thing.  They usually, if they
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          2  are using their brains, have redundant T1 lines and

          3  whatever.  We are a relatively large agency and we

          4  cannot afford to do that.  In a small agency on a

          5  shoestring budget, forget it. This is not in the --

          6  this is not practical.

          7                 But nevertheless, these are the

          8  agencies that most direly need to get people out on

          9  the roads, spending less time in the office, dealing

         10  more with clients, more with customers, going into

         11  homes, going into centers.  For instance, one of the

         12  things we do is, we have a mobile work crew that

         13  goes to various centers and does benefits check up

         14  for them.  You know, you do not want something like

         15  that to have to come back.  And what we are doing is

         16  not unique.  So, these are the organizations that

         17  most direly need to reek the benefits of this kind

         18  of mobility, but are the ones who most need this

         19  type of information to really be able to make good

         20  choices, when choosing the providers that they use.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much, all three.

         23                 I think it is wonderful to hear about

         24  Maryland.  So, I appreciate Ms. Smith coming, and

         25  certainly for Accela to bring her here.
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          2                 My question is, do you actually do

          3  contracting out for your, in other words, what we

          4  have in the City, obviously is over 300,000 workers.

          5    And even in the area that Coney Island is

          6  probably, I mean there are three million people

          7  living in Brooklyn and Coney Island is in itself,

          8  huge.  So obviously, we are talking about a larger

          9  area, more workforce.  But the problems are the

         10  same, in terms of trying to get worker input, doing

         11  the training, maintenance, redundancy and moral,

         12  which I think is incredibly important.

         13                 But do you have contracting out of

         14  the inspections, or is it all done by the County

         15  Government itself?

         16                 MS. SMITH: It is all done by County

         17  Government.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         19                 And what are your ways, do you think,

         20  is there any kind of County- wide broadband or wi-

         21  fi system?  Or is it done directly internally by

         22  your own system?  In other words, is there something

         23  else with the public, or is it just government that

         24  has this access?

         25                 MS. SMITH: It is a private system by
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          2  one of our County Departments, where we have access

          3  points put strategically throughout the County.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: That is

          5  interesting.  So, are there other inspections that

          6  the County does that are also as     technologically

          7  sophisticated, or is it just your Department that

          8  does such a great job?

          9                 MS. SMITH: There are other

         10  Departments, as well. Our Department was actually

         11  the first Department that was going to move forward

         12  with this, kind of a prototype and in testing,

         13  pioneering it.  And as a result of that, also our

         14  Fire and Rescue, our Public Works, our Water

         15  Quality, we have other Departments that will be

         16  hopefully coming on board.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And will you be

         18  able to have some kind of platform so that for

         19  instance, obviously the building needs a Fire

         20  Inspection, I assume, it needs a Building Inspection

         21  and so on.  Will you be able to collaborate on that

         22  as time goes on?

         23                 MS. SMITH: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And how are you

         25  planning, will that be through some kind of GIS or
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          2  some kind of just platform, or is it still to be

          3  worked out?

          4                 MS. SMITH: Through a combination of

          5  things, and we are still working through that, but

          6  we are going to be implementing GIS, as well as

          7  integrating all of the Departments as one.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.  All right.

          9                 It was great to hear that.  I think

         10  that, certainly Ms. Kleinman, this is a very

         11  wonderful agency that you work for, and we are

         12  really big fans, just so you know.  And one of the

         13  issues certainly, would be terrific for the non

         14  profit sector.  I mean, we contract out billions of

         15  dollars.  Our budget is around 53 billion here.  And

         16  we contract out billions, and actually a lot of the

         17  agencies, particularly in the human service world,

         18  do a lot of work that would, in fact, be done in

         19  past years by government agencies.  So persons in

         20  senior centers getting benefits, food stamps, as

         21  well as other kinds of benefits that seniors get,

         22  not to mention inspections.  Inspections are usually

         23  done by City agencies, but on the human service

         24  side, so much is done by the contracted out.

         25                 And I think one of the questions that
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          2  I did not ask and should have, and I will, and

          3  follow up on it is, for the City agencies, how do

          4  you work with your contracted agencies?  Because the

          5  same advantage via technology that the City agencies

          6  get, should also be afforded to the contracted out.

          7  And often that is not true.  And so, I thought your

          8  comments were very apropos, in terms of security and

          9  funding for that, and certainly figuring out about

         10  the data issues.  So, we will follow up.

         11                 Okay.  Thank you all very much.  This

         12  is wonderful and very helpful and much to be

         13  continued.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 Okay.  Thank you very much for this

         16  hearing.  I think there are many aspects to follow

         17  up on.  This has been a good discussion.  I think

         18  actually the first in City Government, in a more

         19  coordinated fashion.  Often we talk about mobile

         20  work force when we do oversight of different

         21  agencies, but it is not often that we do it looking

         22  at the City as a whole.  And I think that it is a

         23  wonderful start, everything from how to improve the

         24  data collection, how to make it more efficient.  And

         25  I think even discussions we learned today about
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          2  translation opportunities being given with more

          3  technology.  And of course we will never forget the

          4  non profit sector.

          5                 Thank you very much, and we will be

          6  continuing this discussion.  Hearing is closed.

          7                 We will -- Gale Brewer again, at the

          8  Committee on Technology, we will include, in the

          9  record from Ms. Chris Rother, Group Vice President

         10  Sales, CDW Government, Inc., testimony regarding her

         11  concerns and suggestions on the mobile workforce.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:00 p.m.)

         14                 (The following written testimony was

         15  read into the record.)

         16

         17  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         18  CHRIS ROTHER

         19  GROUP VICE PRESIDENT, SALES

         20  CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.

         21

         22                 Chairwoman Gale Brewer, members of

         23  the Committee and members of the New York City

         24  Council, on behalf of CDW- G, please accept my

         25  thanks for the opportunity to provide testimony to
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          2  you today.  Before I begin, however, I would make

          3  note that CDW- G has long enjoyed a strong

          4  partnership with government and education

          5  organizations within the State of New York.  At

          6  present, we partner with a significant number of

          7  organizations within the jurisdiction of this

          8  Committee, delivering enabling technology to improve

          9  the effectiveness of citizen services, drive

         10  increased efficiency for government processes, and

         11  ensure continuity of government operations in time

         12  of crisis.  New York remains a leader in driving

         13  improvements to government through technology, and

         14  it is our pleasure to strengthen our partnership

         15  through our testimony today.            Increasing

         16  the mobility of the City workforce is both a

         17  practical application of consistently improving

         18  mobile technology, and a step toward what is

         19  increasingly common within the private sector.  I

         20  would ask the committee members to park, just for a

         21  few moments, their current conceptions of mobility,

         22  and consider a mobile workforce as a series of three

         23  concentric circles of mobility- each with their own

         24  benefits and potential challenges.

         25                 Indoor Wireless
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          2                 The inner circle is the domain of the

          3  Wireless Local Are Network (WLAN), or what would be

          4  considered "Indoor Mobility". The basic level of

          5  mobility enables employees to have access to

          6  important applications and data. As well as basic

          7  internet connectivity virtually anywhere within

          8  their work space.  While at first glance, this

          9  indoor mobility may appear somewhat redundant or

         10  unnecessary, the benefits are in fact quite

         11  significant:

         12                 Improved collaboration and

         13  information sharing: No longer tied to their desks,

         14  City employees will be able to bring applications

         15  and data to meetings to amplify the time spent

         16  coordinating efforts.

         17                 Reduced Networking Costs: Installing

         18  or upgrading hardwired networks can significantly

         19  increase the cost of new technology implementations,

         20  requiring technicians to literally pull wire out of

         21  walls to make changes to the infrastructures,

         22  dramatically simplifying the deployment of

         23  technology tools.

         24                 For example, consider just the task

         25  of adding one new network outlet to an existing
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          2  office.  A trained (meaning higher- wage) technician

          3  actually has to connect a cable to the network hub,

          4  run that cable to the new location (sometimes

          5  through walls) and connect the cable to the new

          6  outlet or end- user machine. Conversely, within a

          7  wireless infrastructure, adding a new outlet

          8  requires simply adding a wireless card to the end-

          9  user machine.  In many cases, new computers actually

         10  come with wireless capability imbedded at a nominal

         11  additional cost.

         12                 The typical concern for an indoor

         13  mobility solution as with virtually all mobility

         14  solutions- is security.  Fortunately, as indoor

         15  wireless technologies now move into their fourth

         16  generation, wireless security has significantly

         17  improved.  That said, monitoring security on an

         18  indoor wireless network does take some additional

         19  vigilance, but it can certainly be as secure as many

         20  wired network.

         21                 As the committee may know, CDW- G

         22  regularly issues nationwide assessments of

         23  technology investment across different technology

         24  categories.  It is my pleasure to inform the

         25  committee that City, County, and State Governments
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          2  within New York are, in fact, investment leaders in

          3  indoor wireless technology.  Between 2000 and 2004,

          4  agencies invested in this technology at a rate 45

          5  percent higher than the national average.

          6                 Remote Access- Telework

          7                 The next concentric circle inside our

          8  mobility model is "Remote Access Mobility"- access

          9  to agency applications and data from another fixed

         10  point outside of the agency building.  Many of the

         11  typical uses for remote access own a high profile in

         12  the government, technology and business press,

         13  including telework and Continuity of Operations.

         14  Although the applications for the technology are

         15  important, I would underscore that many of the same

         16  technologies that are used to provide a telework

         17  infrastructure work for business continuity, and

         18  several other valuable tasks for city- level

         19  governments agencies.  Looking specifically at

         20  telework, let me start by underscoring that the

         21  benefits of remote access mobility used for telework

         22  are significant:

         23                 Employee benefits: The Texas

         24  Transportation Institute reports that commuters

         25  within the New York- Newark Connecticut metro area
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          2  experienced 49 hours in delays for the most recent

          3  report year of 2003.  That is more than a week of

          4  productivity, family or recreation that is lost

          5  simply due to traffic.  Remote access mobility not

          6  only provides that time back to the teleworker, if

          7  implemented on a broad scale, it reduces the delay

          8  times for other commuters without the option for

          9  telework.

         10                 In a time when gas prices are soaring

         11  beyond $3.00 per gallon, telework also delivers a

         12  significant amount of discretionary income back to

         13  the employee.  Research from a Telework Exchange

         14  indicates that a Federal employee at the Grade 8,

         15  Step 4 pay level makes $37,236 per annum.  In April

         16  2005, that employee traveled the average 63 miles

         17  round trip a day, bought gasoline at $2.14 per

         18  gallon and spent $1,235 per annum on gasoline alone-

         19  representing 4.73 percent of that employee's after-

         20  tax income.  Based on gasoline price increases in

         21  September of 2005, with the identical commute, that

         22  same Grade 8, Step 4 Federal employee now spends

         23  $1,761.25 per annum on gasoline alone.  This

         24  represents a $526.25 after- tax real income

         25  reduction.
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          2                 Moreover, CDW- G's own experience

          3  with telework suggests that it enables improved

          4  concentration for large projects or difficult tasks,

          5  allowing the employee to break from the chaos of the

          6  day and focus on creative, well- thought- out

          7  solutions to problems.  Of interest, the 2006 CDW- G

          8  Federal Telework Report indicates that Federal

          9  employees with the option to telework are 11 percent

         10  more satisfied with their jobs.

         11                 Government agency benefits: Remote

         12  access mobility for telework also provides a basic

         13  infrastructure for maintaining continuity of

         14  government operations during a minor or short- term

         15  disruption such as a snow storm.  The 2005 CDW- G

         16  Federal Telework Report reveals that Federal

         17  teleworkers are twice as likely to take care of

         18  high- priority items on a snow day than are non-

         19  teleworkers. The 2006 CDW- G Federal Telework Report

         20  crystallizes the continuity of operations issue,

         21  revealing that teleworkers are 25 percent more

         22  likely to continue working if their building were

         23  closed or destroyed.

         24                 Moreover, the technology

         25  infrastructure and employee training necessary to
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          2  make telework and short- term continuity of

          3  operations successful also provide the foundation

          4  for a long- term continuity of operations program

          5  should a Katrina- sized natural or manmade disaster

          6  occur.  Remote access mobility using redundant,

          7  geographically distributed sites can enable city

          8  employees to work from virtually any location even

          9  for extended periods of time.

         10                 Finally, some Federal agencies are

         11  now benefiting from significant cost savings due to

         12  successful remote access ability- telework programs.

         13    For example, the United States Patent and

         14  Trademark Office actually cancelled a lease for an

         15  entire floor of office space based upon its

         16  successful telework implementation. For the City of

         17  New York, where commercial space comes at a

         18  significant premium, this component alone could

         19  generate substantial cost savings for government

         20  operations.

         21                 Regional benefits: The benefits of

         22  remote access mobility telework programs extend

         23  beyond just the employee and the agency.  Telework

         24  also reduces the wear and tear on the transportation

         25  infrastructure and the environment.  Every Federal
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          2  employee commuting 63 miles per day- and I would

          3  mention here that the State of New York hosts more

          4  than 62,000 Federal employees generates as much as

          5  10.7 tons of pollution in a year.

          6                 Looking specifically at the Federal

          7  government through the lens of the 2006 CDW- G

          8  Federal Telework Report, I am pleased to note that

          9  telework and increased visibility on the issue over

         10  the past year, the number of Federal employees

         11  teleworking jumped from 19 percents in 2005 to 41

         12  percent in 2006, with 43 percent of teleworkers

         13  starting to telework in the last year.

         14                 In addition perceptions about

         15  telework are positive and becoming more positive at

         16  the Federal level.  Fifty- four percent of Federal

         17  workers say that their supervisors view telework

         18  either favorably or very favorably, up from 45

         19  percent in 2005. Eighty- two percent of Federal

         20  workers say that their coworkers view telework

         21  either favorably or very favorably, and 84 percent

         22  of Federal employees who do not currently telework

         23  would telework if given the option.

         24                 As with the indoor mobility

         25  component, security remains the number one obstacle
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          2  for remote access mobility and network.  Looking

          3  again at the 2006 CDW- G Federal Network Report,

          4  fully 53 percent of Federal IT professionals cite

          5  security as the top obstacle for telework in the

          6  Federal environment.  This concern certainly extends

          7  beyond just the Federal and even the government

          8  level, with virtually every organization expressing

          9  some level of concern about information security.  I

         10  would note here that this concern is precisely

         11  correct- IT professionals at every level of

         12  government and in the private sector should have

         13  serious concerns about information security.

         14                 With that clear priority, let me also

         15  add that significant strides are being made in this

         16  area of securing remote access.  The technology to

         17  provide airtight validation of individual users on

         18  authenticated machines is generations old and has

         19  been proven in very demanding environments,

         20  including law enforcement, intelligence, as well as

         21  the current engagements in both Iraq and

         22  Afghanistan.  The issue is not with security

         23  technology, but rather with the people using and

         24  managing the security technology.  For this,

         25  unfortunately, there is no easy answer and constant
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          2  vigilance by trained professionals is the proven way

          3  to ensure information security- for local as well as

          4  for remote access mobility solutions.

          5                 Municipal Wireless Mobility

          6                 The final concentric circle in our

          7  model is "Municipal Wireless Mobility," or mobile

          8  access to applications to date from any point within

          9  a municipal jurisdiction.  Wireless enabled mobile

         10  devices- such as personal digital assistants (PSAs)

         11  and laptops- are becoming increasingly common in

         12  citizens' everyday lives, allowing them to roam

         13  freely while accessing vital information and

         14  applications anywhere through a basic, wireless

         15  connection to the Internet.

         16                 At the same time, local governments

         17  are looking to amplify the information processing

         18  and sharing capabilities of intelligent mobile

         19  devices by implementing municipal wireless networks.

         20    The municipal wireless networks provide widespread

         21  Internet connectivity to select user groups,

         22  increasing government workers' mobility and

         23  productivity, as well as improving citizen services.

         24                 Beyond the immediate operational

         25  benefits of those networks, such as service at the
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          2  point of each citizen, mobile productivity and

          3  improved information sharing, other inherent

          4  advantages of municipal wireless networks exist.

          5  Redundant connection points facilitate continuity of

          6  operations in the event of natural disaster or other

          7  emergency situation.  Further. Relatively minor

          8  additions to these wireless networks by government

          9  agencies can dramatically enhance field

         10  communications and data usage.  Numerous public

         11  safety offices are integrating common wired

         12  solutions into the wireless networks, such as video

         13  surveillance, delivering a powerful, mobile response

         14  tool that enables first responders to handle

         15  emergency situations with current information and

         16  even live feeds to cameras monitoring the incident.

         17                 Looking specifically at public safety

         18  applications, police officers, Special Weapons and

         19  Tactics (SWAT) teams, fire officers and other first

         20  responders often have insufficient situational

         21  awareness about the actions taking place on the

         22  scene. More often than not, departments (e.g., fire

         23  or police) have asymmetric information, with each

         24  organization responding to just one piece of the

         25  overall situation.  The limited situational
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          2  information that is available is traditionally

          3  communicated via a single radio band, using

          4  shorthand codes, where only one unit can relay

          5  information at a time.  In fact, critical

          6  information from units not on scene at the emergency

          7  must wait, by law, behind radio transmissions from

          8  units at the emergency site.

          9                 Data flowing over a network

         10  fundamentally changes the one- way, one- at- a- time

         11  emergency communications model.  With wireless

         12  devices connected to the municipal wireless network,

         13  police and other first responders can leverage Voice

         14  over Internet Protocol (VoIP), Instant Messaging

         15  (IM), or other customized communication methods to

         16  transfer situational information without waiting for

         17  a clear radio channel.  At the same time,

         18  communications are more informational than simple

         19  voice transmission, presenting vast data in a single

         20  image or diagram.

         21                 In Leawood, Kansas, for example,

         22  police department dispatchers send calls directly to

         23  rugged Panasonic Toughbook laptops in police control

         24  cars and other marked vehicles, ensuring that

         25  officers have accurate and complete information- all
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          2  within their line of sight.  In addition,

          3  communications and cooperation among surrounding

          4  jurisdictions have significantly improved, as

          5  Leawood officers and those in several adjacent

          6  communities also use Intergraph Public Safety's

          7  Computer Aided Dispatch System.  This system enables

          8  participating jurisdictions to view each other's

          9  calls on screen, and respond in a more coordinated

         10  and rapid manner to evolving emergency situations.

         11                 Beyond public safety, municipal

         12  wireless mobility also improves non- emergency

         13  services to citizens.  In Kane County, Ill., the

         14  Coroner's Office has coupled mobile wireless

         15  technology with new software applications to create

         16  an automated paper system that cuts the time

         17  required to complete investigations by eliminating

         18  redundant data entry and allowing staff to file

         19  reports from the field.

         20                 Kane County's Coroner's Office

         21  Automation System (COAS) enables staff to capture

         22  hand- written data on Tablet Pcs and on paper forms

         23  using digital pens.  The system transforms

         24   "handwritten" notes into typed documents, which are

         25  uploaded directly into the county database via a
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          2  wireless network.   By streamlining the data entry

          3  process, staff members are able to populate all

          4  forms by entering data only once.  Through a secure

          5  wireless network connection, data moves from the

          6  Tablet Pcs to the office within seconds, ensuring

          7  both information privacy and near instant

          8  information access.

          9                 Previously, the Coroner's Office

         10  completed more than 39,000 paper forms each year.

         11  As a result, the eight- person Coroner's Office

         12  staff spent much of their time hand writing reports

         13  or entering data on aging computers with

         14  insufficient memory, processing speed and hard-

         15  drive space.  Now, staff no longer must return to

         16  the office to complete multiple reports requiring

         17  redundant data entry, which means more work can be

         18  accomplished by the same number of personnel, and

         19  citizens learn the results of the Coroner's Office

         20  investigations in a more timely manner.

         21                 Other agencies are adopting paperless

         22  forms, such as benefits applications and traffic

         23  citation, to reduce operating costs and improve

         24  citizen service.  By digitizing a benefit

         25  application, citizens can complete forms on their
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          2  own time or government employees can help during

          3  preplanned visits to the citizens' homes.  Police

          4  and parking authorities are now processing traffic

          5  citations faster with wireless handheld devices that

          6  scan driver's licenses, populate citations with

          7  relevant data and publish citations to mobile

          8  thermal printers.

          9                 Finally, when natural disasters cause

         10  public switched telephone systems and other wired

         11  networks to fail, wireless networks can be used to

         12  carry mission- critical data. Municipal wireless

         13  networks operating separately from cellular towers

         14  and public switched telephone systems can enable

         15  constant communications between first responders and

         16  their command center if commercial lines are

         17  disabled or overloaded.

         18                 Mesh and particle mesh municipal

         19  networks ensure continuity of operations by

         20  providing redundant Internet feeds from multiple

         21  points, unlike an Internet connection fed from a

         22  single provider.  A mesh or particle mesh network

         23  can be easily restored by connecting a few nodes-

         24  which is a much faster process than reconnecting

         25  every government building to the Internet.
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          2                 Additionally, partial mesh networks

          3  can be set up on the fly to handle communications

          4  typically sent over wired lines and to establish

          5  temporary offices at remote sites overnight.

          6                 The technology for municipal wireless

          7  mobility is currently not as mature as either indoor

          8  mobility or remote access mobility solutions.

          9  Despite the youth of the underlying technology,

         10  however, state and local governments have

         11  demonstrated that these approaches can be deployed

         12  effectively and efficiently at the municipal level.

         13                 Looking at workforce mobility as a

         14  series of concentric, I believe, will enable you to

         15  better understand the full scope of solutions

         16  available and the progression from one to the next.

         17  As you move from the inner circle of indoor mobility

         18  through to remote access mobility, you are able to

         19  dramatically improve the citizen's experience with

         20  government.  At the same time, moving from the inner

         21  circle to the outer circle also requires additional

         22  resources, expertise, employee training and citizen

         23  education to ensure that the new process truly

         24  enables better government.

         25                 Thank you for your time.  If you have
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          2  any additional questions or concerns, please do not

          3  hesitate to contact either myself or New York

          4  representative, Joe Mangano.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:15 p.m.)
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